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Essex County Improvement Authority

27 Wright Way, Building M
Fairfield, New Jersey 07004
Phone: 973-575-0952

Fax: 973-808-0528

April 30, 2018

To the Board of Commissioners
Essex County Improvement Authority
27 Wright Way

Fairfield, New Jersey 07004

The comprehensive annual financial report (CAFR) of the Essex County Improvement
Authority (*Authority”) for the year ended December 31, 2017 is submitted herewith.
Responsibility for both the accuracy of the data, and the completeness and fairness of
the presentation including all disclosures, rests with Authority management. We believe
that the data presented is accurate in all material respects; that the report is presented in
a manner designed to fairly set forth the results of operations of the Authority as
measured by the financial activity of its funds; that the report fairly presents the financial
position of the Authority for the year then ended; and that all disclosures necessary to
enable the reader to gain a maximum understanding of the Authority’s financial activities
have been included.

The CAFR is presented in two sections:

1. Introductory Section: Provides information on the contents of the report,
this fransmittal letter and the Authority’s organizational structure.

2. Financial Section: Includes the auditor’s opinion, management’s discussion
and analysis, basic financial statements and other supplemental information.

Profile of the Government

Since October 16, 1972 when the Board of Chosen Freeholders created the Essex
County Improvement Authority, the Authority has financed hundreds of millions of dollars
of capital projects, equipment and refunding transactions predominantly throughout
Essex County, significantly reducing interest, financing and debt service costs to
taxpayers.

Organization of Structure

The Essex County Improvement Authority consists of a Chairman, a Vice-Chairman,
Secretary, Treasurer and three (3) other Commissioners.



Future Plans

The Authority continues to effectively and profitably manage the Essex County Airport
and various parking facilities that service Essex County. Furthermore, the Authority sold
the Bears and Eagles Riverfront Stadium, which was under contract for sale. The
Authority now leases back the stadium for one more year while the purchaser pursues
development opportunities.

The Authority will continue to provide financing and capital support in accordance with its
statutory authority. The Authority will monitor all existing ECIA and County debt for
potential refinancing savings as well as to provide financing for projects deemed worthy
by the Commissioners.

Financial Information

Internal Controls

In developing and evaluating the Authority’'s accounting system, an important
consideration is the overall adequacy of internal controls. Internal controls are designed
to provide the Authority management with reasonable (but not absolute) assurance
regarding (a) the safeguarding of assets against loss from unauthorized use or
disposition, and (b) the overall reliability of the financial records for preparing financial
statements and for maintaining accountability and control over the Authority’s assets.

The concept of reasonable assurance recognizes that (1) the cost of a control should not
exceed the benefits likely to be derived, and (2) the evaluation of cost and benefits
requires estimates and judgment by management.

Financial Operating Resulits

The management’s discussion and analysis that follows, summarizes and reviews the
changes of the Authority’s financial operations.

Independent Audit

The Authority is required to have an annual audit of the books of account, financial
records, and transactions conducted by independent certified public accountants
selected by the Board of Commissioners. This requirement has been complied with.
The independent auditor's report on the 2017 fiscal year financial statements of the
Authority has been included in the financial section of this report.

Acknowledgment

In closing, preparation of the report would not have been possible without the leadership
and support of the Board of Commissioners.

Sincerely7?
<:;"

- Steven C. Rother
Executive Director
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550 BROAD STREET, 11TH FLOOR 36 WesT MAN STREET, SUITE 303
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FAx (973) 624-6101 FAx (7332) 780-10:30

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT

Board of Commissioners

Essex County Improvement Authority
27 Wright Way

Fairfield, New Jersey 07004

Report on the Financial Statements

We have audited the accompanying financial statements of the Essex County Improvement
Authority, County of Essex, State of New Jersey (the “Authority”), as of and for the years ended
December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the related notes to the financial statements, which comprise
the Authority’s financial statements as listed in the table of contents. These financial statements
are the responsibility of the Authority’s management. Our responsibility is to express an opinion
on these basic financial statements based on our audits.

Management’'s Responsibility for the Financial Statements

Management is responsible for the preparation and fair presentation of these financial
statements in accordance with accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of
America,; this includes the design, implementation, and maintenance of internal control relevant
to the preparation and fair presentation of financial statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error.

Auditor's Responsibility

Our responsibility is to express opinions on these financial statements based on our audit. We
conducted our audit in accordance with auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, issued by the Comptroller General of the United States. Those standards
require that we plan and perform the audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the
financial statements are free of material misstatement.

MEMBERS AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
www.samuelklein-cpa-rma.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(CONTINUED)

An audit involves performing procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and
disclosures in the financial statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditor’'s
judgment, including the assessment of the risks of material misstatement of the financial
statements, whether due to fraud or error. In making those risk assessments, the auditor
considers internal control relevant to the entity’s preparation and fair presentation of the
financial statements in order to design audit procedures that are appropriate in the
circumstances, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
entity’s internal control. Accordingly, we express no such opinion. An audit also includes
evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the reasonableness of
significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the overall
presentation of the financial statements.

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained is sufficient and appropriate to provide a
basis for our audit opinions.

Opinions

In our opinion, the financial statements referred to above present fairly, in all material respects,
the financial position of the Authority as of December 31, 2017 and 2016, and the results of its
operations and its cash flows for the years then ended in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America.

Other Matters

Required Supplementary Information

Accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America require that the
management’s discussion and analysis and pension information on pages 9-24 and pages 80-
81 be presented to supplement the financial statements. Such information, although not a part
of the financial statements, is required by the Governmental Accounting Standards Board who
considers it to be an essential part of financial reporting for placing the basic financial
statements in an appropriate operational, economic, or historical context. We have applied
certain limited procedures to the required supplementary information in accordance with
auditing standards generally accepted in the United States of America, which consisted of
inquiries of management about the methods of preparing the information and comparing the
information for consistency with management’'s responses to our inquiries, the financial
statements, and other knowledge we obtained during our audit of the financial statements. We
do not express an opinion or provide any assurance on the information because the limited
procedures do not provide us with sufficient evidence to express an opinion or provide any
assurance.

Other Information

Our audit was conducted for the purpose of forming opinions on the financial statements that
collectively comprise the Authority’s basic financial statements. The combining and individual
fund financial statements information included in the supplementary information is presented for
purposes of additional analysis and are not a required part of the financial statements.



INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
(CONTINUED)

The combining and individual fund financial statements are the responsibility of management
and were derived from and relates directly to the underlying accounting and other records used
to prepare the basic financial statements. Such information has been subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the basic financial statements and certain additional
procedures, including comparing and reconciling such information directly to the underlying
accounting and other records used to prepare the basic financial statements or to the basic
financial statements themselves, and other additional procedures in accordance with auditing
standards generally accepted in the United States of America. In our opinion, the combining
and individual fund financial statements are fairly stated in all material respects in relation to the
basic financial statements as a whole.

The introductory section has not been subjected to the auditing procedures applied in the audit
of the basic financial statements and, accordingly, we do not express an opinion or provide any
assurance on them.

Other Reporting Required by Government Auditing Standards

In accordance with Government Auditing Standards, we have also issued our report dated April
30, 2018 on our consideration of the Authority’s internal control over financial reporting and our
tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws, regulations, contracts and grant
agreements and other matters. The purpose of that report is to describe the scope of our
testing of internal control over financial reporting and compliance and the resuilts of that testing
and not to provide an opinion on the internal control over financial reporting or on compliance.
That report is an integral part of an audit performed in accordance with Government Auditing
Standards and should be considered in assessing the results of our audit.

Joseph . Facoone

Joseph J. Faccone
Registered Municipal Accountant #100

Huelflestepes

SAMUEL KLEIN AND COMPANY
Newark, New Jersey
April 30, 2018



SAMUEL KLEIN AND COMPANY

CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS

550 BROAD STREET, 11TH FLOOR 36 WEST MaInN STREET, SUITE 303
NEWARK, N.J. 07102-9969 FrREEHOLD, N.J.07728-2291
Pruoxe (973)624-6100 PronNgE (732) 780-2600

FAx (973) 624-6101 Fax (732) 780-1030

INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

Board of Commissioners

Essex County Improvement Authority
27 Wright Way

Fairfield, New Jersey 07004

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally accepted in the United
States of America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards issued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the financial
statements and fund information of Essex County Improvement Authority, County of Essex,
State of New Jersey (the “Authority”), as of and for the year ended December 31, 2017, and the
related notes to the financial statements, which comprise of the Authority’s financial statements,
and have issued our report thereon dated April 30, 2018.

Internal Control Over Financial Reporting

In planning and performing our audit of the financial statements, we considered the Authority’s
internal control over financial reporting (internal control) to determine the audit procedures that
are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose of expressing our opinions on the financial
statements, but not for the purpose of expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of the
Authority’s internal control. Accordingly, we do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of
the Authority’s internal control.

A deficiency in internal control exists when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, in the normal course of performing their assigned functions, to
prevent, or detect and correct, misstatements on a timely basis. A material weakness is a
deficiency, or a combination of deficiencies, in internal control, such that there is a reasonable
possibility that a material misstatement of the entity’s financial statements will not be prevented,
or detected and corrected on a timely basis. A significant deficiency is a deficiency, or a
combination of deficiencies, in internal control that is less severe than a material weakness, yet
important enough to merit attention by those charged with governance.

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described in the first paragraph
of this section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control that might be
material weaknesses or significant deficiencies. Given these limitations, during our audit we did
not identify any deficiencies in internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses.
However, material weaknesses may exist that have not been identified.

MEMBERS AMERICAN INSTITUTE OF CERTIFIED PUBLIC ACCOUNTANTS
www.samuelklein-cpa-rma.com
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INDEPENDENT AUDITOR’S REPORT
ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL REPORTING
AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS BASED ON AN AUDIT
OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED IN ACCORDANCE
WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

(CONTINUED)

Compliance and Other Matters

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Authority’s financial statements
are free of material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions
of laws, regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, noncompliance with which could have a
direct and material effect on the determination of financial statement amounts. However,
providing an opinion on compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our audit, and
accordingly, we do not express such an opinion. The results of our tests disclosed no instances
of noncompliance or other matters that are required to be reported under Government Auditing
Standards.

Purpose of this Report

The purpose of this report is solely to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of
the entity’s internal control or on compliance. This report is an integral part of an audit
performed in accordance with Government Auditing Standards in considering the entity’s
internal control and compliance. Accordingly, this communication is not suitable for any other
purpose.

Joseph . Facoone

Joseph J. Faccone
Registered Municipal Accountant #100

Hud st Clfey

SAMUEL KLEIN AND COMPANY

Newark, New Jersey
April 30, 2018



MANAGEMENT’S DISCUSSION AND ANALYSIS

The discussion and analysis is desighed to provide an analysis of the Improvement
Authority’s financial condition and operating results and to also inform the reader on
Improvement Authority financial issues and activities.

The Management'’s Discussion and Analysis (MD&A) should be read in conjunction with

the Transmittal Letter (beginning on page 1) and the Authority’'s basic financial
statements (beginning on page 25).

USING THIS ANNUAL REPORT

The financial statements included in this annual report are those of a special-purpose
government engaged only in a business-type activity. As enterprise funds, the
Authority’s basic financial statements include:

Statement of net position — reports the Authority’s current financial
resources (current spendable resources) with capital assets and noncurrent
obligations. (Exhibit A)

Statement of revenues, expenses and change in net position — reports
the Authority’s operating and nonoperating revenues, by major source along
with operating and nonoperating expenses and capital contributions. (Exhibit
B)

Statement of cash flows — reports the Authority’s cash flows from operating
activities, investing, capital and noncapital activities. (Exhibit C)

Notes to the financial statements — the notes provide additional information
that is essential to a full understanding of the data provided in the basic
financial statements.

Other information — in addition to the basic financial statements and
accompanying notes, this report also presents certain supplementary
information.



COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF NET POSITION ~ AUTHORITY-WIDE STATEMENT
ADJUSTED TO CONFORM TO GENERAL ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

The Authority-wide comparative statement (pages 25 and 26) combine all five (5) basic
financial proprietary fund statements (pages 82-83) and the restricted funds (pages 84-
88) and adjust for the long-term pension liability in order to comply with proper financial
reporting.

Years ended December 31,

2017 2016

Assets:

Current Assets $ 58,273,129 $ 50,269,780

Restricted Assets 569,742,871 616,191,087

Noncurrent Assets 25,827,591 26,198,852

Total Assets $ 653,943,591 $ 692,659,719
Deferred QOutflows $ 1,630,214 $ 1,375,324
Liabilities:

Current Liabilities - Unrestricted $ 4,601,323 $ 4,456,832

Current Liabilities - Restricted 45,884,931 42,052,620

Noncurrent Liabilities 573,994,112 617,413,152

Total Liabilities $ 624,480,366 $ 663,922,604
Deferred Inflows $ 822,051 3 112,992
Net Position:

Invested in Capital Assets $ 19,730,606 $ 19,299,177

Restricted 1,512,512 1,958,878

Unrestricted 9,028,272 8,741,392

$ 30,271,390 $ 29,999,447

The net position of the Authority increased by $271,942 during 2017 mainly due to
higher operating income.
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COMPARATIVE STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN NET
POSITION - AUTHORITY-WIDE STATEMENT ADJUSTED TO CONFORM TO GENERAL
ACCEPTED ACCOUNTING PRINCIPLES

Years Ended December 31,

2017 2016
Total Revenues $ 39,341,338 $ 40,969,330
Operating Expenses 36,415,220 38,092,206
Depreciation 806,635 819,751
Total Operating Expenses 37,221,855 38,911,957
Operating Income 2,119,483 2,057,373
Nonoperating Revenues/(Expenses) (1,847,540) (4,290,570)
Change in Net Position - Increase 271,943 (2,233,197)
Net Position, Beginning 29,999,447 32,232,644
Net Position, Ending $ 30,271,390 $ 29,999,447

The Authority’s operating expenses exclusive of depreciation decreased by $1,676,986
in 2017 when compared to 2016.

-11 -



The Authority operates unrestricted funds with four different proprietary activities:
Development and Finance Assistance, Airport, Parking and Sportsplex Complex.

STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION - INDIVIDUAL FUNDS BASIC FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Development and Finance Assistance (Admin)

The Deveopment and Finance Assistance Fund consists of revenues from various
sources; financing fees (the Authority provides financing to local governmental and non-
governmental units within the County and outside) parking fees (management fees,
excess revenue as per Parking Agreements with the County of Essex).

The Development and Finance Assistance Fund can be use to pay for expenses for all
the departments. The Authority six (6) administrative employees that include the
Executive Director and Counsel oversees work in all departments.

The Development and Finance Assistance’s net position of $7,784,191 is comprised of
the following:

¢ Invested in capital assets of $62,522
¢ Restricted funds designated for a special project of $64,736
¢ Unrestricted funds of $7,656,933

Years ended December 31, Increased/
2017 2016 {Decreased) Percent
Assets:
Current Assets $ 9,785,072 $ 9,472,281 $ 312,791 3.30%
Noncurrent Assets 62,522 79,588 (17,066) -21.44%
Total Assets $ 9,847,594 $ 9,551,869 $ 295,725 3.10%
Liabilities:
Current Liabilities -
Unrestricted $ 2,063,403 $ 2,065,075 $ (1,672) -0.08%
Total Liabilities $ 2,063,403 $ 2,065,075 $  (1,672) -0.08%
Net Position:
Invested in Capital Assets $ 62,522 $ 79,588 $ (17,066) -21.44%
Restricted 64,736 64,735 1 0.00%
Unrestricted 7,656,933 7,342 471 314,462 4.28%
$ 7,784,191 $ 7,486,794 $ 297,397 3.97%

The majority of the Development and Finance Assistance’s Current Assets include cash,
cash equivalents and investments and interfund and intrafund receivables.
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION -
INDIVIDUAL FUNDS BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Development and Finance Assistance (Admin)

Years Ended December 31, Increased/
2017 2016 {Decreased) Percent

Total Revenues $ 803,837 $ 643,360 $ 160,477 24.94%
Operating Expenses:

Salaries and Benefits 561,478 418,418 143,060 34.19%

Other 187,943 215,066 (27,123) -12.61%
Depreciation 17,067 17,067 - 0.00%
Total Operating Expenses 766,488 650,551 115,937 17.82%
Operating Income 37,349 (7,191) 44 540 NM
Nonoperating Revenues/

(Expenses) 260,048 (1,936,764) 2,196,812 -113.43%
Change in Net Position -

Increased/(Decreased) 297,397 (1,943,955) 2,241,352 -115.30%
Net Position, Beginning 7,486,794 9,430,749 (1,943,955) -20.61%
Net Position, Ending $ 7,784,191 $ 7,486,794 $ 297,397 3.97%

Net position, as of December 31, 2017, increased mainly due to the financing fee from
the 2017 Refinancing deal, net revenues from the Parking and Sportsplex Garage Funds
netted with non-operating (expenses) consisting of a Capital Contribution and a
provision for Settlement of Litigation.

-13-



STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION — INDIVIDUAL FUNDS BASIC FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Airport

The Authority operates general aviation airport located in Fairfield, New Jersey which is
comprised of two hundred and seventy eight (278) acres of property. The airport has
two main runways and offers tie-downs and hangar storage. Also through its tenants,
the airport provides FBO services, aircraft avionics and maintenance and flight school
training. There is approximately twelve (12) Authority employees who work at the Airport.
Their main task is to maintain the grounds, buildings and providing security.

Airport funds are considered unrestricted; however the funds are restricted for Airport
use only. Also, the funds are dedicated to bondholders under Airport financing
documents.

Years ended December 31, Increased/
2017 2016 (Decreased) Percent

Assets:

Current Assets $ 5,364,564 $ 5,094,503 $ 270,061 5.30%

Restricted Assets 108,405 555,390 (446,985) -80.48%

Noncurrent Assets 25,865,069 26,119,264 (254,195) -0.97%

Total Assets $ 31,338,038 $ 31,769,157 $ (431,119) -1.36%
Liabilities:

Current Liabilities -

Unrestricted $ 1,065,049 $ 1,026,162 $ 38,887 3.79%
Noncurrent Liabilities 6,145,000 6,840,000 (695,000) -10.16%
Total Liabilities $ 7,210,049 $ 7,866,162 $ (656,113) -8.34%

Deferred Inflows 3 51,985 $ 59,675 $ (7,690} -12.89%
Net Position:

Invested in Capital Assets $ 19,668,084 $ 19,219,589 $ 448,495 2.33%

Restricted 108,405 555,390 (446,985) -80.48%

Unrestricted 4,299,515 4,068,341 231,174 5.68%

$ 24,076,004 $ 23,843,320 $ 232684 0.98%

The majority of the Airport's Current Assets include cash, cash equivalents and
investments and inventory.
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION -
INDIVIDUAL FUNDS BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Airport
Years Ended December 31, Increased/
2017 2016 {Decreased) Percent

Operating Revenue $ 4,294,559 $ 4,055,306 $ 239,253 5.90%
Operating Expenses:

Salaries and Benefits 835,209 783,604 51,605 8.59%

Other 2,112,917 1,843,238 269,679 14.63%
Depreciation 789,568 802,684 {13,116) -1.63%
Total Operating Expenses 3,737,694 3,429,526 308,168 8.99%
Operating Income 556,865 625,780 (68.915) -11.01%
Nonoperating Revenues/

(Expenses) (324,181) (245,091) (79,090) 32.27%
Change in Net Position -

Increased/(Decreased) 232,684 380,689 (148,005) -38.88%
Net Position, Beginning 23,843,320 23,462,631 380,689 1.62%
Net Position, Ending $ 24,076,004 $ 23,843,320 $ 232,684 0.98%

Net position, as of December 31, 2017, increased mainly due to the Operating Revenue
in excess of Operating Expenses Nonoperating Revenue/(Expenses) consist mainly of
interest on bonded indebtedness.
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STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION - INDIVIDUAL FUND BASIC FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Parking

The Authority operates a parking facility located in Newark, New Jersey at the County of
Essex complex, i.e. Hall of Records. This facility is comprised of both deck (1,300)
spaces) and surface parking lot (300 spaces). This facility serves those who visit the
County for business or utilize the County court complex including the jurors.

There are approximately six (6) Authority employees who work at the Parking Facility.
Their main task is to assist the parkers, maintain the grounds and collect daily parking
fees.

Years ended December 31, Increased/
2017 2016 {Decreased) Percent

Assets:

Current Assets $ 1,755,570 $ 1,655,846 $ 99,724 6.02%

Restricted Assets 3,075,000 3,610,000 (635,000) -14.82%

Totai Assets $ 4,830,570 $ 5,265,846 $ (435,276) -8.27%
Liabilities:

Current Liabilities -

Unrestricted $ 2,315,570 $ 2,190,846 $ 124,724 5.69%
Noncurrent Liabilities 2,515,000 3,075,000 {560,000) -18.21%
Total Liabilities $ 4,830,570 $ 5,265,846 $ (435,276) -8.27%

There is no Net Position since all net revenue is allocated between the County of Essex
and the Authority. The Authority portion of the excess of revenue is deposited into the
Development and Financial Assistance Fund. Excess expenses are returned to the .
County — as per the Parking Agreements between the County of Essex and the
Authority.

The majority of the Parking Current Assets include cash, cash equivalents and
investments.
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION -
INDIVIDUAL FUNDS BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Parking
Years Ended December 31, Increased/
2017 2018 (Decreased) Percent

Operating Revenue $ 2,246,388 $ 2230424 $ 15,964 0.72%
Operating Expenses:

Salaries and Benefits 317,718 355,647 (37,929) -10.66%

Other 380,234 400,707 (20,473) -5.11%
Total Operating Expenses 697,952 756,354 (58,402) -7.72%
Operating Income 1,548,436 1,474,070 74,366 5.04%
Nonoperating Revenues/

(Expenses) $  (1,548,436) $ (1,474,070) $ (74,366) 5.04%

The Nonoperating Revenue/(Expenses) includes the distribution of operating income to
the County and the Authority.
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STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION - INDIVIDUAL FUND BASIC FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Sportsplex Complex

The Authority operates Parking Garage located at the Bears & Eagles Stadium in
Newark, New Jersey. In 2003 the County of Essex, City of Newark and Port Authority of
NY/NJ collaborated to construct a parking deck adjacent to the Bears & Eagles Stadium.
This deck holds 377 parking spaces. This deck allows for commuter licensed parking,
Stadium parking and has assisted in the development of a portion of the City of Newark
by allowing local businesses access to parking through license agreements, for their
employees and customers. The only revenue currently generated for the Sportsplex
Complex is from the Sportsplex Parking Garage.

There are three (3) Authority employees who work at the Parking Garage. Their main
task is to assist the parkers and maintain the grounds.

Years ended December 31, Increased/
2017 2016 (Decreased) Percent
Assets:
Current Assets $ 1,677,294 $ 1,626,401 $ 50,893 3.13%
Total Assets $ 1,677,294 $ 1,626,401 $ 50,893 3.13%
Liabilities:
Current Liabilities - Unrestricted $ 337,924 $ 287,648 $ 50,276 17 .48%
Total Liabilities $ 337,924 $ 287648 $ 50,276 17.48%
Net Position:
Unrestricted $ 1,339,370 $ 1,338,753 $ 617 0.05%
$ 1,339,370 $ 1,338,753 $ 617 0.05%

The majority of the Sportsplex Parking Garage Current Assets include cash, cash
equivalents and investments and interfund and intrafund receivables.

The net position is earmarked in effect for reinvestment into the stadium to operate the
Stadium under the Leaseback Agreement.
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION -
INDIVIDUAL FUNDS BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Sportsplex Complex

Years Ended December 31, Increased/
2017 2016 (Decreased) Percent

Operating Revenue $ 447,126 $ 545436 $ (98,310) -18.02%
Operating Expenses:

Salaries and Benefits 107,754 188,466 (80,712) -42.83%

Other 161,525 160,984 541 0.34%
Total Operating Expenses 269,279 349,450 (80,171) -22.94%
Operating Income 177,847 195,986 (18,139) -9.26%
Nonoperating Revenues/

(Expenses) (177,230) (385,836) 208,606 -54.07%
Change in Net Position -

Increased/(Decreased) 617 (189,850) 190,467 -100.32%
Net Position, Beginning 1,338,753 1,528,603 (189,850) -12.42%
Net Position, Ending $ 1,339,370 $ 1,338,753 $ 617 0.05%

Net position, as of December 31, 2017, increased slightly in spite of a decrease in
revenue and decrease of expenditures; any excess is allocated to the Authority's
Development and Finance Assistance and to operate Sportsplex Stadium.
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STATEMENTS OF NET POSITION - INDIVIDUAL FUND BASIC FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS

Sportsplex Complex — Stadium

The Authority, up to October 24, 2016, operated the Stadium located in the City of
Newark, County of Essex. Operations consisted of various revenues derived from
activities conducted at the Stadium; however, since the Stadium was sold, the authority
is only responsible for maintaining the building and property for one more year. The only
realized revenue currently generated is that from the adjacent parking garage.

Years ended December 31, Increased/
2017 2016 (Decreased) Percent
Assets:
Current Assets $ 4,834 $ 23,449 $ (18,615) -79.39%
Total Assets $ 4,834 $ 23,449 $ (18,615) -79.39%
Liabilities:
Current Liabilities - Unrestricted $ 18,260 $ (18,260) -100.00%
Total Liabilities $ - $ 18,260 $_(18,260) -100.00%
Net Position:
Unrestricted $ 4834 $ 5,189 $ (355) -6.84%
$ 4,834 $ 5189 $ (355) -6.84%

The fund is being phased out as the baseball stadium was sold in 2016.
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STATEMENT OF REVENUES, EXPENSES AND CHANGE IN NET POSITION —
INDIVIDUAL FUND BASIC FINANCIAL STATEMENTS

Sportsplex Complex — Stadium

Years Ended December 31, Increased/
2017 2016 {Decreased) Percent

Operating Revenue $ 57,385 $ 61,012 3 (3,627) -5.94%
Operating Income 57,385 61,012 (3,627) -5.94%
Nonoperating Revenues/

(Expenses) (57,740) (248,809) 191,068 -76.79%
Change in Net Position -

Increased/(Decreased) (355) (187,797) 187,442 -99.81%
Net Position, Beginning 5,189 192,986 (187,797) -97.31%
Net Position, Ending 3 4,834 $ 5,189 3 (355) -6.84%

The net position as of December 31, 2017 decreased mainly due to the Stadium being
sold in 2016 and not being rented any longer. The only revenue currently generated for
the Sportsplex Complex is from the Sportsplex Parking Garage.
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CAPITAL ASSETS

As of December 31, 2017, the Authority had $59,423,761 invested in land, buildings,
furniture, equipment and vehicles.

Balance Balance
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
Land $ 9,085,551 $ 8,930,878
Construction in Progress:

Airport 1,589,406 1,678,519
Total Capital Assets Not being Depreciated 10,674,957 10,609,397
Airport Improvements 36,257,144 36,229,239
Buildings 11,137,999 10,706,835
Equipment and Vehicles 1,264,580 1,248,121
Furniture and Fixtures 89,081 89,081

48,748,804 48,273,276
Total Accumulated Depreciation (33,496,170) (32,683,821)
Total Capital Assets being Depreciated -

Net of Accumulated Depreciation 15,252,634 15,589,455

Capital Assets, Net $ 25,927,591 $ 26,198,852

Authority Debt Proprietary Funds {(Only)

As of December 31, 2017 the Authority had $9,915,000 of bonded indebtedness
attributed to its parking and airport operations.

Balance Balance
December 31, December 31,
2017 2016
Airport Bonds $ 6,840,000 3 7,515,000
Parking Bonds 3,075,000 3,710,000

$ 9,915,000 $ 11,225,000
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RESTRICTED FUNDS

The Restricted Fund of the Authority provides the accounting and custodianship for the
various participant based financings that the Authority has issued. The financings have
occurred since the Authority was empowered to issue debt on behalf of the county,
municipalities within the county, other qualifying municipalities and certain not-for-profit

entities.

Current Assets
Restricted Assets

Current Liabilities
Noncurrent Liabilities

Revenues:
Development and Financial Assistance
Interest

Expenses
Services by Contract
Interest and Related Charges

The majority of the assets consist of bonds receivable and liabilities consist of bonds
payable, which are intended to offset each other.

$

December 31,

2017 2016

41,118,595 § 33,779,848
566,559,466 612,025,697
607,678,061 $ 645,805,545
45991930 $ 42,187,620
561,686,131 603,617,925
607,678,061 $ 645,805,545
31,264,691 & 33,253,689
227,351 180,103
31,492,042 $ 33,433,792
784699 $ 806,091
30,707,343 32,627,701
31,492,042 % 33,433,792

Currently the individual bond

issuances are managed and monitored by a trustee and overseen by the Authority.
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FINANCIAL CONTACT

The Authority’s statements are designed to present a general overview of the Authority's
finances and to demonstrate the Authority’s accountability. If you have any questions
about the report or need additional financial information, please contact the Executive
Director, Steven C. Rother.

pd
-~ Steven C. Rother
Executive Director
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS




Note 1.

Note 2.

THE ESSEX COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

OPERATIONS

The Essex County Improvement Authority (the "Authority"), is a political subdivision
of the State of New Jersey. The Authority was established by the County of Essex in
1972. The Authority has the power to acquire, construct, renovate and install any
"public facility", to issue its bonds, notes or other obligations to finance the costs of
such public facility and to purchase bonds.

The Authority's activities consist of (1) the operation of a general aviation airport
located in Fairfield, New Jersey; (2) a parking facility located adjacent to the County
of Essex (the "County") courthouse in Newark, New Jersey; (3) the administration
and further development of its pooled governmental loan programs and its capital
equipment and property and infrastructure leasing programs, which in combination,
provide financing to local governmental units including the County for the acquisition,
construction, renovation or installation of any public facility; (4) the administration and
further development of bond financings and (5) up to October 24, 2016 at which time,
it was sold (see Note 5D) the operation of the Stadium Complex and adjacent
parking facility located in the City of Newark, County of Essex. Operations consist of
various revenues derived from activities conducted at the Stadium Complex and
adjacent parking facility.

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES

A. Basis of Financial Statements

The financial statements of the Authority have been prepared on the accrual
basis of accounting, with certain elimination entries, in accordance with
governmental accounting standards applicable to local government units for
enterprise funds. The Authority's operations are segregated into the following:

e Unrestricted funds — includes the operation of the airport, juror and
sportsplex parking, sportsplex (baseball stadium) and the development,
financial assistance and administrative functions. With respect to
revenues derived from airport operations, they are deemed by Authority
Bond Resolution as pledged to the airport revenue/refunding bonds (see
Note 7). The accounting requirements are such that the airport net
position is presented as unrestricted. However, within an individual
unrestricted fund, there may be funds that are designated for specific
related purposes which are deemed as restricted.

e Restricted funds — includes the administration of the various financing
programs for the county, local government units and other qualified
participants which are maintained in accordance with each applicable
bond resolution. In addition, other Authority funds segregate where
applicable.

o All interfund balances and transactions have been eliminated for the
purpose of financial reporting.
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Note 2.

THE ESSEX COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

B.

E.

Use of Estimates

The preparation of financial statements in conformity with accounting principles
generally accepted in the United States of America requires management to
make estimates and assumptions that affect the amounts reported in the financial
statements and accompanying notes. Actual results could differ from those
estimates.

Unrestricted — Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Cash includes petty cash, change funds, cash in banks, savings accounts,
money markets, or highly liquid securities with a maturity date of three (3) months
or less from the date of purchase which may be withdrawn at any time without
prior notice or penalty. Cash equivalents are defined as short-term, highly liquid
securities that are both readily convertible to known amounts of cash and so near
their maturity that they present insignificant risk of changes in value because of
changes in interest rates. Generally, only securities with original maturity dates
of three (3) months or less meet this definition. For the Statements of Cash
Flows the Authority includes all cash, cash equivalents and investments.

Restricted — Cash, Cash Equivalents and Investments

Restricted cash, cash equivalents and investments are stated at cost, which
approximates market. These assets are restricted for the future redemption of
bonds payable and future investments in direct financing leases. Restricted
cash, cash equivalents and investments are principally held in interest bearing
bank accounts or U. S. Government obligations, and are held by independent
frustees.

Inventory

Inventory of airplane fuel is expended when consumed and is stated at cost
utilizing the first-in-first-out method.

Premises and Equipment

Premises and equipment are stated at cost less accumulated depreciation.
Depreciation is provided using the straight-line method over the estimated useful
lives of the assets (5 to 40 years).

Grants For Capital Expenditures

Grants received from governmental units which are restricted to the acquisition of
assets, are reflected as invested in capital assets in the statement of change in
unrestricted net position. Depreciation on such property, when acquired, is
reflected as a reduction of invested in capital assets.
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THE ESSEX COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

H. Deferred Qutflows/Inflows of Resources

in addition to assets, the statement of net position will sometimes report a
separate section for deferred outflows of resources. This separate financial
statement element, deferred outflows of resources, represents a consumption of
net position that applies to a future period(s) and so will not be recognized as an
outflow of resources (expense/expenditure) until then. In addition to liabilities,
the statement of net position will sometimes report a separate section for
deferred inflows of resources. This separate financial statement element,
deferred inflows of resources, represents an acquisition of net position that
applies to future periods and so will not be recognized as an inflow of resources
(revenue) until that time.

Refundings of Debt — Unrestricted Funds

Governmental Accounting Standard Statement No. 65, "Accounting and Financial
Reporting for Refundings of Debt Reported by Proprietary Activities," provides for
current and advance refundings resulting in defeasance of debt to defer the
difference between the reacquisition price and the net carrying amount of the
defeased indebtedness and amortize the difference as a component of interest
expense over the shorter of the remaining life of the old indebtedness or the life
of the new debt.

Net Position

Net Position represents the difference between assets, deferred outflows,
deferred inflows and liabilities in the government-wide financial statements. Net
position invested in capital assets, net of related debt consists of capital assets,
net of accumulated depreciation, reduced by the outstanding balance of any
noncurrent debt used to build or acquire the capital assets. Net position is
reported as restricted in the government- wide financial statements when there
are limitations imposed on their use through external restrictions imposed by
creditors, grantors or laws or regulations of other governments.
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THE ESSEX COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

K. Accounting and Financial Reporting for Pensions

The Authority has also implemented GASB Statement 71, Pension Transition for
Contributions made Subsequent to the Measurement Date-an amendment to
GASB No. 68. The objective of this Statement is to address an issue regarding
application of the transition provisions of Statement No. 68, Accounting and
Financial Reporting for Pensions. The issue relates to amounts associated with
contributions, if any, made by a state or local government employer or
nonemployer contributing entity to a defined benefit pension plan after the
measurement date of the government's beginning net pension liability.

Statement 68 requires a state or local government employer (or nonemployer
contributing entity in a special funding situation) to recognize a net pension
liability measured as of a date (the measurement date) no earlier than the end of
its prior fiscal year. If a state or local government employer or nonemployer
contributing entity makes a contribution to a defined benefit pension plan
between the measurement date of the reported net pension liability and the end
of the government's reporting period, Statement 68 requires that the government
recognize its contribution as a deferred outflow of resources.

In addition, Statement 68 requires recognition of deferred outflows of resources
and deferred inflows of resources for changes in the net pension liability of a
state or local government employer or nonemployer contributing entity that arise
from other types of events. At transition to Statement 68, if it is not practical for
an employer or nonemployer contributing entity to determine the amounts of all
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to
pensions, paragraph 137 of Statement 68 required that beginning balances for
deferred outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources not be reported.
Consequently, if it is not practical to determine the amounts of all deferred
outflows of resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions,
contributions made after the measurement date of the beginning net pension
liability could not have been reported as deferred outflows of resources at
transition. This could have resulted in a significant understatement of an
employer or nonemployer contributing entity's beginning net position and
expense in the initial period of implementation.

Subsequent Events — Management has reviewed and evaluated all events and

. transactions from December 31, 2017 through April 30, 2018, the date that the

financial statements are issued for possible disclosure and recognition in the
financial statements, and no items have come to the attention of the Authority
that would require disclosure.
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Note 2. SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

M. Other Accounting Standards

The Authority is currently reviewing the following for applicability and potential impact
on the financial statements:

GASB Statement No. 75.  Accounting and Financial Reporting for
Postemployment Benefits Other Than Pensions. The primary objective of this
Statement is to improve accounting and financial reporting by state and local
governments for postemployment benefits other than pensions (other
postemployment benefits or OPEB).

Effective Date: The provisions in Statement 75 are effective for fiscal years
beginning after June 15, 2017. Earlier application is encouraged. The
Authority has yet to determine the impact of this Statement on its financial
statements.

GASB Statement No. 82. Pension Issues — an amendment of GASB
Statements No. 67, No. 38 and No. 73. Specifically, this Statement addresses
issues regarding (1) the presentation of payroll-related measures in required
supplementary information, (2) the selection of assumptions and the
treatment of deviations from the guidance in an Actuarial Standard of Practice
for financial reporting purposes, and (3) the classification of payments made
by employers to satisfy employee (plan member) contribution requirements.

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting
periods beginning after June 15, 2016, except for the requirements of
paragraph 7 in a circumstance in which an employer's pension liability is
measured as of a date other than the employer's most recent fiscal yearend.
In that circumstance, the requirements of paragraph 7 are effective for that
employer in the first reporting period in which the measurement date of the
pension liability is on or after June 15, 2017. The Authority does not expect
this Statement to impact its financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 83. Certain Asset Retirement Obligations. This
Statement addresses accounting and financial reporting for certain asset
retirement obligations (AROs). An ARO is a legally enforceable liability
associated with the retirement of a tangible capital asset. A government that
has legal obligations to perform future asset retirement activities related to its
tangible capital assets should recognize a liability based on the guidance in
this Statement.

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting

periods beginning after June 15, 2018. The Authority does not expect this
Statement to impact its financial statements.

-34-



Note 2.

THE ESSEX COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
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SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

M. Other Accounting Standards (Continued)

GASB Statement No. 84. Fiduciary Activities. This objective of this
Statement is to improve guidance regarding the identification of fiduciary
activities for accounting and financial reporting purposes and how those
activities should be reported. This Statement establishes criteria for
identifying fiduciary activities of all state and local governments. The focus of
the criteria generally is on (1) whether a government is controlling the assets
of the fiduciary activity and (2) the beneficiaries with whom a fiduciary
relationship exists. Separate criteria are included to identify component units
and postemployment benefit arrangements that are fiduciary activities.

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2018. The Authority does not expect
this Statement to impact its financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 85. Omnibus 2017. This objective of this Statement is
to address practice issues that have been identified during implementation
and application of certain GASB Statements. This Statement addresses a
variety of topics including issues related to blending component units,
goodwill, fair value measurement and application, and postemployment
benefits (pensions and other postemployment benefits [OPEB]).

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting
periods beginning after June 27, 2017. The Authority does not expect this
Statement to impact its financial statements.

GASB Statement No. 86. Certain Debt Extinguishment Issues. The primary
objective of this Statement is to improve consistency in accounting and
financial reporting for in-substance defeasance of debt by providing guidance
for transactions in which cash and other monetary assets acquired with only
existing resources — resources other than the proceeds of refunding debt ~
are placed in an irrevocable trust for the sole purpose of extinguishing debt.
This Statement also improves accounting and financial reporting for prepaid
insurance on debt that is extinguished and notes to financial statements for
debt that is defeased in substance.

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting

periods beginning after June 27, 2017. The Authority does not expect this
Statement to impact its financial statements.
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THE ESSEX COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

SUMMARY OF SIGNIFICANT ACCOUNTING POLICIES (CONTINUED)

M. Other Accounting Standards (Continued)

GASB Statement No. 87. Leases. The objective of this Statement is to
better meet the information needs of financial statement users by improving
accounting and financial reporting for leases by governments. This
Statement increases the usefulness of governments’ financial statements by
requiring recognition of certain lease assets and liabilities for leases that
previously were classified as operating leases and recognized as inflows of
resources or outflows of resources based on the payment provisions of the
contract.

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting
periods beginning after December 15, 2019. Earlier application is
encouraged.

GASB Statement No. 88. Certain Disclosures Related to Debt, including
Borrowings and Direct Placements. The primary objective of this Statement
is to improve the information and is disclosed in notes to government financial
statements related to debt, including direct borrowings and direct placements.
it also clarifies which liabilities governments should include when disclosing
information related to debt.

This Statement requires that additional essential information related to debt
be disclosed in notes to financial statements, including unused lines of credit;
assets pledged as collateral for the debt; and terms specified in debt
agreements related to significant events of default with finance related
consequences, significant termination events with finance-related
consequences, and significant subjective acceleration clauses.

Effective Date: The requirements of this Statement are effective for reporting
periods beginning after June 15, 2018. Earlier application is encouraged.
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THE ESSEX COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS

A. Cash and Cash Equivalents

New Jersey statutes and the Authority's Bond Resolution permit the deposit of
public funds in institutions located in New Jersey that are insured by the Federal
Deposit Insurance Corporation (FDIC), the Savings Association insurance Fund
(SAIF), or by any other agencies of the United States that insure deposits or the
State of New Jersey Cash Management Fund. At December 31, 2017, all
deposits of the Unrestricted Fund of the Authority with a maturity of three months
or less from the date of purchase were deemed cash and cash equivalents for
the purposes of the Statement of Cash Flows.

In accordance with the provisions of the Governmental Unit Deposit Protection
Act of New Jersey (GUDPA), public depositories are required to maintain
collateral for deposits of public funds that exceed insurance limits as follows:

The market value of the collateral must equal five percent of the average
daily balance of public funds or

If the public funds deposited exceed 75 percent of the capital funds of the
depository, the depository must provide collateral having a market value
equal to one hundred percent 100 percent of the amount exceeding 75
percent.

All collateral must be deposited with the Federal Reserve Bank, The Federal
Home Loan Bank Board or a banking institution that is a member of the Federal
Reserve System and has capital funds of not less than $25,000,000.

. Investments

New Jersey statutes permit the Authority to purchase the following types of
securities:

* Bonds or other obligations of the United States of America or obligations
guaranteed by the United States of America. This includes instruments
such as Treasury bills, notes and bonds.

+ Government money market mutual funds.

* Any federal agency or instrumentality obligation authorized by Congress
that matures within 397 days from the date of purchase, and has a fixed
rate of interest not dependent on any index or external factors.

+ Bonds or other obligations of the local unit or authority of which the local
unit is a part.
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THE ESSEX COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

CASH, CASH EQUIVALENTS AND INVESTMENTS (CONTINUED)

B.

Investments (Continued)

* Any other obligations with maturities not exceeding 397 days, as
permitted by the Division of Investments.

+ Local government investment pools, such as New Jersey CLASS and the
New Jersey Arbitrage Rebate Management Program.

* New Jersey State Cash Management Fund.

* Repurchase agreements of fully collateralized securities, subject to
special conditions.

New Jersey Statutes and the Authority's General Bond Resolution authorize the
Authority to invest in obligations which are obligations of or guaranteed by the
Federal Government and certain State managed funds whose investments are
primarily in Federal securities and certain banking institutions. As indicated by
GASB #3 as amended by GASB #40, all securities with a maturity date of more
than three (3) months from the date of purchase are deemed to be investments
of the Authority.

At December 31, 2017, the Authority’s total cash, cash equivalents and
investments on deposit are as follows:

Unrestricted 3 17,116,980
Restricted 14,541,278

$ 31,658,258
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Note 4. RESTRICTED BONDS RECEIVABLE

The bonds receivable at December 31 consist of following:

2017

1986 Series Bonds (PGLP) receivable in annual installments ranging
from $285,000 to $965,000 through 2025, with interest varying and due
monthly an average rate charged of 0.8397% per annum in 2017. (a) $ 10,896,000

2004 Series Bonds receivable (2004 Project Consolidation Revenue
Refunding Bonds) ranging in annual installment from $10,680,000 to
$12,725,000 in 2023 through 2030 with interest rate of 5.5%. (b) 93,240,000

2005 Series A and B Bonds receivabie (Marina Bay Multifamily Housing
Revenue Bonds) ranging in annual instaliments from $121,794 to
$364,513 through 2045. The Series A Bonds carry an interest of 5%
and the Series B Bonds carry an interest rate of 3.75%. (¢) 6,678,513

2005 Series Bonds receivable (2005 Project Consolidation Revenue
Refunding Bonds) ranging in annual instaliments from $155,000 to $440,000
through 2027 with interest rates ranging from 4.125% to 4.375%. (d) 1,875,000

2005 Series A and B Bonds receivable (Sportsplex Refunding Project)
ranging in annual installments from $20,000 to $380,000 through 2027.
The Series A Bonds carry interest rates ranging from 3.75% to 4.35%.
The Series B Bonds carry interest rates ranging from 4.88% to 5.10%. (e) 2,445,000

2006 Series Bonds receivable (2006 Project Consolidation Revenue
Refunding Bonds) ranging in annual installments from $2,815,000 to
$3,820,000 through 2024 with interest rate of 5.25%. (f) 23,075,000

2006 Series A Bonds receivable (Sportsplex Refunding Project)
ranging in annual installments from $315,000 to $385,000 through 2027.
The Series A Bonds carry interest rates ranging from 4.25% to 4.30%. (g) 1,070,000

2007 Series Bonds receivable (2007 Project Consolidation Revenue
Refunding Bonds) ranging in annual installments from $25,360,000
to $46,445,000 through 2022 with interest rates ranging from
5% to 5.25%. (h) 174,760,000
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RESTRICTED BONDS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

Bonds receivable at December 31: (Continued)

2010 Series Bonds receivable (Parking Revenue Bonds, Bloomfield
Parking Authority Project) ranging in annual instaliments from $5,000
in 2019 to $1,500,000 through 2040 with interest rates ranging
from 7.275% to 8.008%. (i)

2010 Series Bonds receivable (Fern Senior Housing Project) payable in
one installment of $11,300,000 in 2040 with varying interest rates. (j)

2013 Series Bonds receivable (2013 Project Consolidation Revenue
Refunding Bonds) ranging in annual instaliments from $4,545,000
to $6,205,000 through 2022 with interest rates ranging from 4.0%
t0 5.0%. (k)

2014 Series Bonds receivable (2014 Project Consolidation Revenue
Refunding Bonds) ranging in annual installations from $2,455,000 to
$10,270,000 through 2022 with interest rates from 4.0% to 5.0%. (1)

2015 Series Bonds receivable (2015 Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds,

Covanta Project) payable in one installment of $90,000,000 in 2045
with an interest rate of 5.25%. (m)

2015 Series A, B and C receivable (2015 Park Terrace/Grove House
Apartments Project Revenue Bonds) ranging in annual instaliments
from $5,000 in 2018 to $480,000 in 2053 with interest rates ranging
from 5.0% to0 7.0%. (n)

2017 Series Bonds receivable (2017 Project Consolidation Revenue
Refunding Bonds) ranging in annual instaliments from $200,000

in 2018 to $34,020,000 in 2027 with interest rates ranging
from 2.0% to 2.125%. (0)

Current
Non-Current

Noncurrent Portion

-40 -

2017

$ 12,480,000

11,300,000

16,040,000

40,725,000

90,000,000

8,845,000

38,460,000

$ 531,889,513

$ 40,615,382
491,374,131

$ 531,889,513
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THE ESSEX COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
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RESTRICTED BONDS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

(a)

(b)

(c)

(d)

(e)

(f)

(9

(h)

@)

@

(k)

()

(m)

(n)

(0)

In connection with the 1986 Pooled Government Loan Program bonds issued,
the Authority used the proceeds of the bond issuances to purchase bonds of
various local government units. The local government units used the proceeds
to renovate or acquire public facilties. The proceeds from the bonds
receivable are restricted for the future redemption of the pooled government
loan program bonds payable. (see Note 8(a))

In connection with the 2004 Project Consolidation Revenue Bonds (Refunding
Project). (See Note 8(c))

In connection with the 2005 Marina Bay Series A and B Revenue Bonds. (See
Note 8(d))

In connection with the 2005 Project Consolidation Revenue Bonds (Refunding
Project). (See Note 8(e))

In connection with the 2005 Sportsplex Refunding Bonds, Series A and B. (See
Note 8(f))

In connection with the 2006 Project Consolidation Revenue Bonds (Refunding
Project). (See Note 8(g))

In connection with the 2006 Sportsplex Refunding Bonds Series A and B. (See
Note 8(h))

in connection with the 2007 Project Consolidation Revenue Bonds (Refunding
Project). (See Note 8(i))

in connection with the 2010 Bloomfield Parking Authority Bonds. (See Note
8())

In connection with the 2010 Fern Senior Housing Project Revenue Bonds.
(See Note 8(k))

In connection with the 2013 Project Consolidation Revenue Refunding Bonds.
(See Note 8(q))

In connection with the 2014 Project Consolidation Revenue Refunding Bonds.
(See Note 8(r))

In connection with the 2015 Solid Waste Disposal (Covanta Project) Revenue
Bonds. (See Note 8(s))

In connection with the 2015 Project Revenue Bonds (Park Terrace/Grove
House Apartments Projects), Series 2015 A-C. (See Note 8(t))

in connection with the 2017 Project Consolidation Revenue Refunding Bonds.
(See Note 8(u))
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Note 4. RESTRICTED BONDS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

Bonds receivable for the next five (5) years and every five (5) years thereafter are as

follows:
Next five (5) years:
2018 $ 38,712,382
2019 41,556,982
2020 53,572,395
2021 57,538,044
2022 61,563,940
252,943,743
Every five (b) years thereafter:
2023 50,630,092
2024 18,066,513
2025 13,558,214
2026 13,055,208
2027 13,837,509
109,147,536
2028 11,380,129
2029 12,043,083
2030 12,741,383
2031 950,054
2032 1,039,104
38,153,753
2033 1,143,551
2034 1,248,414
2035 1,363,713
2036 1,489,465
2037 1,625,693
6,870,836
2038 1,767,417
2039 1,914,660
2040 13,377,444
2041 605,796
2042 634,740
18,300,057
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THE ESSEX COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Note 4. RESTRICTED BONDS RECEIVABLE (CONTINUED)

Bonds receivable for the next five (5) years and every five (5) years thereafter are as
follows: (Continued)

Every Five (5) years thereafter; (continued)

2043 $ 664,303
2044 694,514
2045 90,633,771
2046 370,000
2047 390,000
92,752,588

2048 410,000
2049 435,000
2050 455,000
2051 485,000
2052 505,000
2,290,000

2053 535,000
535,000

$ 520,993,513

Reconciliation {o Statement of Net Position:
Current Portion $ 40,515,382
Noncurrent Portion 491,374,131

$ 531,889,513
Less: PGLP Bonds Receivable 10,896,000

$ 520,993,513
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RESTRICTED NET INVESTMENT IN DIRECT FINANCING LEASES

The Authority issued bonds to finance the acquisition, construction and renovation of
certain capital improvements on behalf of local government units. The Authority then
leased such capital assets to the local government units and the County of Essex.
The leases are accounted for as direct financing leases with payment terms similar
to the bond debt service requirements. The restricted investment in direct financing
leases represents the future minimum lease payments receivable less the cost to be
incurred in connection with the construction of the capital improvements at
December 31, 2017.

Also, in connection with the issuance of the 1992 Parking Facility Revenue Bonds,
the Authority is party to a service agreement with the County related to the
construction and operation of the new parking facility for jurors serving the County.
This service agreement expires in 2022 and provides for annual service charges
payable in monthly installments by the County to the Authority equal to the principal
and interest on the 2009 Parking Facility Revenue Refunding Bonds due and
payable in such year, the operating expenses, including the Authority’s management
fee for operation of the parking facility, payable in such year, and the administrative
expenses, including the Authority’s administrative fee for issuing the bonds, payable
in such year. This agreement is accounted for as a direct financing lease with
payment terms similar to the bond debt service requirements. The restricted
investment in direct financing leases represents the future minimum lease payments
receivable. The unearned income represents the cost to be incurred in connection
with the construction of the parking facility at December 31, 2017. Receipts of
operating expenses under this agreement, including the Authority’s management fee
for operation of the parking facility, are included in parking revenues in the
accompanying statements of revenues and expenses. Receipts of administrative
fees under this agreement, including the Authority’s administrative fee for issuing the
bonds, are included in development and financial assistance revenues in the
accompanying statements of revenues and expenses.
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NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Note 5. RESTRICTED NET INVESTMENT IN DIRECT FINANCING LEASES (CONTINUED)

A. Future Minimum Lease Payments

Future minimum lease payments to be received for the next five (5) years and
every five (5) years thereafter under direct financing leases are as follows:

Unrestricted Restricted
Next five (5) years:

2018 $ 560,000 $ 4,555,000
2019 585,000 3,895,000
2020 615,000 4,080,000
2021 645,000 4,275,000
2022 670,000 4,520,000
3,075,000 21,325,000

Every five (5) years thereafter:
2023 4,780,000
2024 5,045,000
2025 5,335,000
2026 5,640,000
2027 5,975,000
26,775,000
2028 5,985,000
2029 6,335,000
2030 6,340,000
18,660,000
Total Minimum Obligation $ 3,075,000 $ 66,760,000
Less: Construction Costs to be Incurred 5,961,387
$ 3,075,000 $ 60,798,613

Note: All principal and interest for direct financing leases for 2017 have been
received.
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THE ESSEX COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Note 5. RESTRICTED NET INVESTMENT IN DIRECT FINANCING LEASES (CONTINUED)

B. Leased Properties

There are several properties that are owned by the ECIA and leased to
participants. The asset value is reflected as part of the net investment in direct
financing leases. The properties remaining or portion thereof will revert to the
participants upon completion of the lease. They are as follows:

County of Essex — Participant

Description Block-Lot Address
Social Services 380-4 50 South Clinton Street, E. Orange
Social Services Parking Lot 380-26 90 South Clinton Street, E. Orange

Gibraltar

62-1.1-C-001 and

147-159 Halsey Street, Newark

1.5-C-005

County Jail 5070-7.1 354-374 Doremus Avenue, Newark
Juror Parking 232-1-SUF-01 48-60 Howard Street, Newark
City of Newark — Participant

Description Block-Lot Address
City Finance Building 163-101 838 Broad Street
Child and Family Well Being 101-1.6 110 William Street
Child and Family Well Being 99-3 34 William Street
Municipal Courts and Annex 873-1 31 Green Street
Traffic and Signal 2837-1 255 Central Avenue
Symphony Hall 883-41 1020 Broad Street
Firehouse, Engine 10 and 12 2575-1.15 350 Carter Avenue
Firehouse, Engine 6 and 11 267-15 345 South 5th Street
Firehouse, Engine 13 761-51 714 Mount Prospect Avenue
Firehouse, Engine 16 2484-3 458-473 Ferry Street
Firehouse, Engine 18 2533-2C 395-399 Avon Avenue
Firehouse, Engine 19 3511-1d 526-528 Frelinghuysen Avenue
Firehouse, Engine 7 423-1 241 West Market Street
Fire Headquarters 4074-19 1010 18th Avenue
Police Headquarters 973-1 22 Franklin Street
Special Operations 188801-4.8 470-476 Orange Street
West District Police Precinct 2551-1.38 10-30 17th Avenue
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RESTRICTED NET INVESTMENT IN DIRECT FINANCING LEASES (CONTINUED)

C. County of Essex — Lessee/Sublease

The Authority is a party to a lessee/sublease agreement with the County of Essex
relating to four (4) properties. The Authority derives no revenue and incurs no
expenses in this transaction. The County ultimately owns this property. The
properties are as follows:

e MclLoones Boathouse at the South Mountain Recreation Complex
Cherry Lane, West Orange, NJ

* Highlawn Inc. at the Eagle Rock Reservation
West Orange, NJ

s Aramark Sports and Entertainment Services, LLC at South Mountain
Recreation Complex, Turtle Back Zoo, West Orange, NJ

¢ United Skates of Essex County at Branch Brook Park

D. Sale of Sportsplex

On October 24, 2016 the Authority finalized the sale of the Sportsplex Stadium
(known locally as Newark Bears and Eagles Stadium). The contracted sales
price was $23,500,000, which was allocated to defease (redeem) $17,955,000 of
previously issued bonds related to the stadium construction, and to distribute
other excesses to the County of Essex and City of Newark. Under a lease
agreement the Authority will operate for the next two (2) years subsequent to
2016 the stadium as a baseball facility. There will be no professional team
involved.
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Note 6. CAPITAL ASSETS, NET

A summary of premises and equipment at December 31 is as follows:

a. Unrestricted Fund

December 31, Transfer/ December 31,
2016 Additions (Retirements) 2017
Land $ 8,930,878 $ 154,673 $ 9,085,551
Construction in Progress:
Airport 1,678,519 459,051 $  (548,164) 1,589,406
Total Capital Assets
Not being Depreciated 10,609,397 613,724 (548,164) 10,674,957
Airport Improvements 36,229,239 132,132 (104,227) 36,257,144
Buildings 10,706,835 431,164 11,137,999
Equipment and Vehicles 1,248,121 16,459 1,264,580
Furniture and Fixtures 89,081 89,081
Total 48,273,276 579,755 (104,227) 48,748,804
Total Accumulated
Depreciation (32,683,821) (812,349) (33,496,170)
Total Capital Assets being
Depreciated - Net of
Accumulated Depreciation 15,589,455 (232,594) (104,227) 15,252,634
Capital Assets, Net $ 26,198,852 $ 381,130 $  (652,391) $ 25,927,591

Depreciation is provided for on the straight line basis, annually.

Depreciation expense for the years 2017 and 2016 were $812,349 and $819,751
respectively.

Capital assets also include assets that were funded by grants contributed from
the Federal and State governments.

b. Restricted Fund

There are other assets that are reflected in Net Investment in Direct Financing
Leases that are not required to be included in Capital Assets. These will revert to
the County of Essex, City of Newark and/or other participants at the conclusion of
the related Lease(s). Refer to Note 5.
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BONDS PAYABLE — UNRESTRICTED FUND

The debt service obligations from the Authority’s unrestricted fund for 2017 have
been satisfied. The details are as follows:

2017

$1,000,000 Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 1998 (a) 3 75,000

$8,590,000 County of Essex Airport Revenue and Refunding Bonds
Series 2007 (b) 5,640,000

$1,880,000 County of Essex Airport Refunding Bonds, Series 2014 (c) 1,125,000

Subtotal for Airport 6,840,000

$7,040,000 Parking Facility Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2009 (d) 3,075,000

Total

$ 9,915,000

Less: Current Portion 1,255,000

Noncurrent Portion $ 8,660,000

(a)

(b)

The $1,000,000 Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 1998 were issued to
provide financing for the completion of the prior Airport Project and for
improvements to airport facilities and acquisition of computer equipment
and maintenance vehicles. The bonds are term bonds; the final annual
installment of $375,000 is due on November 1, 2018. The remaining bond
bears an interest rate of 5.1%.

The Series 1998 Bonds due November 1, 2018 are subject to mandatory
sinking fund redemption prior to maturity, through selection by lot by the
Trustee and upon the giving of notice as provided in the General Bond
Resolution. To date there has been no call nor Notice of Redemption
authorized by the Authority.

The $8,590,000 Essex County Improvement Authority Airport Revenue and
Refunding Bonds, Series 2007 were issued to refund the remaining
outstanding balance of the $3,000,000 Airport Revenue Bonds, Series 1994
previously issued by the County of Essex and the Essex County
Improvement Authority and to finance capital improvements.

The remaining bonds are payable in annual instaliments on November 1

ranging from $310,000 to $470,000 through 2032 at interest rates ranging
from 4.375% to 5.0%.
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BONDS PAYABLE — UNRESTRICTED FUND (CONTINUED)

(b)

(c)

(Continued) The Series 2007 Bonds maturing on or before November 1,
2017 are not subject to optional redemption prior to maturity. The Series
2007 Bonds maturing on or after November 1, 2018 are subject to optional
redemption prior to maturity by the Authority, on or after November 1,
2017. To date there has been no call nor Notice of Redemption authorized
by the Authority.

The $1,880,000 Essex County Improvement Authority Airport Refunding
Revenue Bonds, Series 2014 were issued to refund the remaining
outstanding balance of the $1,920,000 Airport Revenue Bonds, Series
2004, previously issued by the County of Essex and the Essex County
Improvement Authority.

The remaining bonds are payable in annual instaliments on October 1
ranging from $270,000 to $295,000 in 2021 at an interest rate of 3.0%.

The Series 2014 bonds are not subject to call or early redemption.

Airport Bonds — Pledge

The Airport Revenue Bond Series 1998, 2007 and 2014 (Note 7a, 7b, 7¢)
are payable from and are secured on a parity basis with all other bonds
issued pursuant to, and outstanding under the Bond Resolution by a pledge
of the funds and accounts which are held by the Trustee under the Bond
Resolution, and by a pledge of the revenues of the Authority which are
derived from the ownership and operation of the Airport. “Revenues” is
defined under the Bond Resolution to consist of (i) all revenues, income,
and receipts derived or to be derived by the Authority, from or attributable to
the ownership or use the Airport Project, (ii) the proceeds of any insurance
covering a loss due to an interruption in the operation of the Airport Project,
and (iii) any investment income which is derived from the investment of any
funds which are held by the Trustee pursuant to the terms of the Bond
Resolution and which are deposited in the Revenue Fund.

Airport Bonds — County Guarantee

The payment of the principal of and interest on the Airport Revenue Bonds
Series 1998, 2007 and 2014 is further secured under the provisions of the
County Guaranty Payment of the principal of and interest on the Airport
Bonds is unconditionally and irrevocably guaranteed by the County under
the Airport County Guaranty, which requires, among other things, that the
County, if necessary, levy ad valorem taxes upon all the property within the
County without limitation as to rate or amount in order to make such
payments.
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BONDS PAYABLE — UNRESTRICTED FUND (CONTINUED)

(d)

The $7,040,000 Parking Facility Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2009
(Note 7d) were issued to. provide funds for the advance refunding of
$7,100,000 of the Authority’s Parking Facility Revenue Bonds, Series 1998.
The bonds are term bonds, payable in annual installments on October 1,
ranging from $560,000 to $670,000 through 2022. The remaining bonds
bear interest at rates ranging from 4.0% to 5.0%.

The Series 2009 Parking Facility Bonds maturing before October 1, 2020
shall not subject to optional redemption prior to their stated maturities. The
Series 2009 Parking Facility Bonds maturing on or after October 1, 2020
shall be subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities at the option of
the Authority (on its own direction or at the direction of the County) either in
whole or in part on any date, on or after October 1, 2019, at par upon notice
and other terms as provided in the Parking Facility Bond Resolution, by
selection of maturities by the Authority (on its own direction or at the
direction of the County), or by lot or in any customary manner within any
maturity as determined by the Trustee. To date there has been no call nor
Notice of Redemption authorized by the Authority.

Parking Facility Revenue Bonds — Pledge

The Parking Facility Bonds are special obligations of the Authority payable
by the Authority solely from and secured by the respective pledge of the
Trust Estate as provided in the Parking Facility Bond Resolution. The Trust
Estate is defined as (i) all right, title and interest of the Authority in, to and
under (a) the Revenues, (b) all moneys and securities held in any Funds or
Accounts established under the Parking Facility Bond Resolution with
respect to the respective series of Parking Facility Bonds, including the
Series 2009 Parking Facility Bonds (except for the Operating Expense
Fund and the Rebate Fund), which would include Public Service Charges
necessary to satisfy any deficiency in the County Revenues, (c) any
moneys or securities to be set aside pursuant to the terms of the Parking
Facility Bond Resolution and pledged to the Owners of the Parking Facility
Bonds, including the Series 2009 Parking Facility Bonds, and (d) payments,
if any, made by the County under the respective Parking Facility County
Guaranty and (ii) any other rights, title and interest in, to and under the
Service Agreement (but none of the Authority’s obligations under the
Service Agreement, and also excluding the Reserved Rights), including,
without limitation, the Service Agreement Rights and all payments and
other amounts required to be paid by the County thereunder and under any
other documents executed and deliver in connection with the Service
Agreement and the Parking Facility Project.
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(d)

(Continued)

Parking Facility Revenue Bonds — Pledge (Continued)

“County Revenues” is primarily comprised of County Service Charges.
“County Service Charges’ is defined to include payments to be made by the
County to the Authority or the Trustee (to the extent Series 2009 Parking
Facility Bonds are outstanding), which for any year of calculation, shall
equal the sum of the principal and redemption premium, if any, of and
interest on the Series 2009 Parking Facility Bonds and any other series of
additional bonds (as hereinafter defined) due and payable in such year.

Parking Facility County Guaranty

The principal of and interest on the Series 2009 Parking Facility Bonds will
also be fully, unconditionally and irrevocably secured by the County under a
guaranty ordinance. The obligation of the County to make payments under
the terms of the 2009 Parking Facility County Guaranty constitutes the
valid, binding, direct and general obligation of the County, and is payable
out of the first funds becoming legally available for such purpose. In the
opinions of Bond Counsel to the Authority and the County and based upon
certain respective assumptions set forth therein, the County has the power
and is obligated to levy ad valorem taxes upon all the taxable property in
the County for the purpose of making such payments under the 2009
Parking Facility County Guaranty, as the same may become due, without
limitation as to rate or amount, if such funds are not otherwise available.
The 2009 Parking Facility County Guaranty will remain in full force and
effect for as long as the Series 2009 Parking Facility Bonds remain
outstanding.
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BONDS PAYABLE — UNRESTRICTED FUND (CONTINUED)

Analysis of Bonds Paid

2017 Activity
Original Balance Paid Balance Cumulative
Issued December 31, During December 31, Amount

Amount 2016 Year 2017 Paid
Airport Revenue Bonds
Series 1998 $ 1,000,000 8 150,000 § 75,000 $ 75,000 $ 925000
County of Essex Airport
Revenue & Refunding
Bonds Series 2007 8,590,000 5,980,000 340,000 5,640,000 2,950,000
County of Essex Airport
Refunding Bonds
Series 2014 1,880,000 1,385,000 260,000 1,125,000 755,000
Parking Facility Revenue
Bonds, Series 2009 7,040,000 3,610,000 535,000 3,075,000 3,965,000

$ 18,610,000 $ 11,125,000 $ 1,210,000 $ 9,915,000 $ 8,595,000

Gain on Refunding of Bonds, Net

Accounting losses/gains on advanced refundings of debt are presented net and
amortized as a component of interest expense using the straight-line method over
the remaining life of the new debt. The unamortized gain at December 31, 2017 was
$51,986. During 2016 the Authority amortized $7,689 of the gain on defeasance to
interest expense. The amounts are reflected as part of the Deferred Inflows of
Resources on the Statement of Net Position.

Unamortized Gain on Refunding

Net Amortization Net
Book Value During Accumulated Book Value
Gain Dec 31, 2016 2017 Amortization Dec 31, 2017

Airport 2007 % 49371 $§ 31,103 $ 1975 $ 18,267 $ 29,128

Airport 2014 40,000 28,572 5,714 11,429 22,858

$ 59675 $ 7,689 $ 29,696 $ 51,986
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Debt Service Obligation

All debt service obligations due during the year 2017 have been satisfied. The
aggregate remaining maturities of bonds payable for the next five (5) years and
every five (5) years thereafter as of December 31, 2017 are as follows:

Total Debt
Principal Interest Service
Next five (5) years:
2018 $ 1,255,000 $ 462,550 $ 1,717,550
2019 1,225,000 407,313 1,632,313
2020 1,285,000 353,887 1,638,887
2021 1,340,000 295,338 1,635,338
2022 1,095,000 234,237 1,329,237
6,200,000 1,753,325 7,953,325
Every five (5) years thereafter:

2023 445,000 179,488 624,488
2024 470,000 157,237 627,237
2025 295,000 133,738 428,738
2026 310,000 118,987 428,987
2027 325,000 104,263 429,283
1,845,000 693,713 2,538,713

2028 340,000 88,825 428,825
2029 355,000 72,675 427,675
2030 375,000 55,812 430,812
2031 390,000 38,000 428,000
2032 410,000 19,475 429,475
1,870,000 274,787 2,144,787

$ 9,915,000 $ 2,721,825 $ 12,636,825
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The Bonds Payable that are issued by the Authority as conduit issuer on behalf of
Participants are as follows:

2017

$250,000,000 Pooled Governmental Loan Program Bonds,

Series 1986 (a) $ 17,200,000
$5,500,000 City of Newark General Obligation Guaranteed

Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 (b) 3,285,000
$188,565,000 County of Essex Project Consolidation Revenue

Bonds, Series 2004 (2004 Refunding Project) (c) 93,240,000
$7,400,000 Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds, Series

2005 A&B (Marina Bay Project, Cape May County) (d) 6,678,513
$11,515,000 County of Essex Project Consolidation Revenue

Bonds, Series 2005 (2005 Refunding Project) (e) 1,875,000
$14,420,000 Essex County Improvement Authority General

Obligation Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2005

A & B (Sportsplex Refunding Project) (f) 2,445,000
$41,865,000 County of Essex Project Consolidation Revenue

Bonds, Series 2006 (2006 Refunding Project) (g) 23,075,000
$13,215,000 Essex County Improvement Authority General

Obligation Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2006

A & B (Sportsplex Refunding Project) (h) 1,070,000
$235,845,000 County of Essex Project Consolidation Revenue

Bonds, Series 2007 (2007 Refunding Project) (i) 174,760,000
$12,480,000 Parking Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 (Bloomfield

Parking Authority Project) Recovery Zone Economic

Development Bonds, Federally Taxable-Issuer Subsidized (j) 12,480,000
$11,300,000 Essex County Improvement Authority Variable

Rate Demand Multi-Family Housing Revenue Bonds,

Series 2010 (Fern Senior Housing Project) (k) 11,300,000

-55-



THE ESSEX COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Note 8. BONDS PAYABLE — RESTRICTED FUND (CONTINUED)

2017

$42,185,000 Lease Revenue Bonds, City of Newark

Series 2010A Working Capital, Leased Premises (1) $ 35,275,000
$30,255,000 Lease Revenue Bonds, City of Newark

Series 2010B Capital improvements and Environmental

Remediation Leased Premises (m) 24,685,000
$2,570,000 County of Essex General Obligation Guaranteed

Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds (NJPAC)

Series 2011 (n) 375,000
$2,695,000 County of Essex General Obligation Guaranteed

Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds (Riverbank)

Series 2011 (0) 460,000
$3,825,000 County of Essex General Obligation Guaranteed

Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds (Social Services)

Series 2011 (p) 2,680,000
$52,540,000 County of Essex Project Consolidation Revenue

Bonds, Series 2013 (2013 Refunding Project) (q) 16,040,000
$58,255,000 County of Essex Project Consolidation Revenue

Bonds, Series 2014 (2014 Refunding Project) (r) 40,725,000
$90,000,000 Essex County Improvement Authority Solid Waste

Disposal Revenue Bonds (Covanta Project), Series 2015 (s) 90,000,000
$8,855,000 Essex County Improvement Authority Project

Revenue Bonds (Park Terrace/Grove House Apartments

Project), Series 2015 A-C (1) 8,845,000
$38,460,000 County of Essex Project Consolidation Revenue

Bonds, Series 2017 (2017 Refunding Project) (u) 38,460,000

Total $ 604,953,513
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2017

Total Bonds Payable $ 604,953,513
Less: Current Portion (43,267,382)
Noncurrent Portion $ 561,686,131
Reconciliation to Offsetting Receivable:

Restricted Bonds Receivable (Note 4) $ 533,492,613

Investment in Direct Financing Leases (Note 5) 66,760,000

$ 600,252,513
Add: PGLP Bonds Payable $ 17,200,000
Less: PGLP Bonds Receivable 12,499,000 4,701,000

$ 604,953,513

Restricted Debt Issue and Related Charges

Amortization of loss or gain on refunding of debt on behalf of participants is not
required to be disclosed in conjunction with the Statement of Net Position as
presented, due to the fact that the ECIA deems participants shares as conduit debt.

(a)

(b)

The 1986 $250,000,000 Pooled Governmental Loan Program Bonds were
issued to refinance the $100,000,000 Initial Program Bonds and are
payable based on a mandatory sinking fund provision stipulated in the
bond resolution. The bonds had an average interest rate of 0.7775% per
annum in 2016. The bonds are secured by restricted cash, cash
equivalents and investments and restricted bonds receivable (see Note

4(a)).

The $5,500,000 City of Newark General Obligation Guaranteed Lease
Revenue Bonds, Series 1999 were issued to provide funds for financing the
acquisition, construction, installation and renovation of the City of Newark’s
Public Safety Communications Center, and pay costs of issuance
associated therewith. The bonds are term bonds payable in annual
installments on April 1, from $205,000 in 2018 to $355,000 in 2029 and
bear interest at rates ranging from 5.0% to 5.125%. The bonds are secured
unconditionally and irrevocably by the City of Newark.
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(c)

(d)

(e)

The $188,565,000 Essex County Improvement Authority Project
Consolidation Revenue Bonds, Series 2004 (Refunding Project) were
issued to refund various previously issued bonds of the County of Essex
and the Essex County Improvement Authority. (See Note 4(b))

The Authority executed a partial defeasance of the bonds. Sufficient funds
were deposited into an irrevocable trust to cover outstanding principal of
$65,245,000 of Project Consolidation Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series
2004. The Project Consolidation Revenue Bonds, Series 2014 were
purchased for $58,255,000 with a premium of $7,849,023. The funding for
the partial defeasance was provided for within the Authority’s Series 2014
$58,255,000 Project Consolidation Revenue Bonds. The Authority
completed the partial advance refunding to achieve debt service savings.
The bonds are secured by an unconditional and irrevocable guarantee by
the County of Essex and certain revenues.

The remaining bonds are payable in annual installments on October 1,
ranging from $10,680,000 to $12,725,000 between 2023 and 2030 with an
interest rate of 5.5%.

The $2,800,000 Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds, Series 2005 A and
$4,600,000 Multifamily Housing Revenue Bonds, Series 2005 (collectively
the Marina Bay Project) were issued to finance a portion of the costs of the
acquisition of a low and moderate income multifamily senior citizens
residential rental facility and to pay certain costs of issuance associated
therewith. The principal and interest on this debt has not been paid since
April of 2014 and the obligee is in the process of refinancing the debt. (See
Note 4(c))

The remaining bonds are payable in monthly installments from January
2018 to September 2045 annually ranging from $121,794 to $364,513. The
Series A Bonds carry an interest rate of 5% and the Series B Bonds carry
an interest rate of 3.75%.

The $11,515,000 Essex County Improvement Authority Project
Consolidation Revenue Bonds Series 2005 (Refunding Project) were
issued to refund various previously issued bonds of the Essex County
improvement Authority. The bonds are secured by an unconditional and
irrevocable guarantee by the County of Essex and certain revenues. In
2017, funds were provided to refund the remaining of the 2005 Series
Bonds in the amount of $5,210,000. (See Note 4(d))

The remaining bonds are payable in annual instaliments on December 15,

ranging from $155,000 to $440,000 between 2018 and 2027 at rates
ranging from 4.125% to 4.375%.
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(f)

(@

(h)

The $14,420,000 Essex County Improvement Authority General Obligation
Guaranteed Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2005 (Sportsplex
Refunding Project) were issued to refund portions of 1997 Series A and B
Sportsplex Project Bonds and the 1999 Sportsplex Project Series D2 Bonds
in their entirety. The bonds are secured by an unconditional and
irrevocable guarantee by the County of Essex and certain revenues. In
conjunction with the sale of the Sportsplex Stadium (See Note 5D) during
2016 funds were provided to refund all the remaining 2005 Series B Bonds
in the amount of $6,990,000. (See Note 4 (e))

The Bonds were issued in two Series. The $2,485,000 Series A Bonds are
tax-exempt bonds maturing in amounts ranging from $20,000 in 2018 to
$380,000 in 2027. Interest rates range from 3.90% to 4.35%.

The $41,865,000 Essex County Improvement Authority Project
Consolidation Revenue Bonds Series 2006 (Refunding Project) were
issued to refund various previously issued bonds of the Essex County
Improvement Authority. The bonds are secured by an unconditional and
irrevocable guarantee by the County of Essex and certain revenues. In
conjunction with the sale of the Sportsplex Stadium (See Note 5D) during
2016 funds were provided to refund the remaining Series B bonds in the
amount of $6,880,000. (See Note 4 (f))

The remaining bonds are payable in annual installments on December 15,
ranging from $2,815,000 in 2018 to $3,820,000 in 2024 at an interest rate
of 5.25%.

The $13,215,000 Essex County Improvement Authority General Obligation
Guaranteed Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2006 (Sportsplex
Refunding Project) were issued to refund 1997 Series E and H Sportsplex
Project Bonds and the 1999 Series H2 Sportsplex Project Bonds in their
entirety. (See Note 4(g))

The Bonds were issued in two series. The $1,070,000 Series A Bonds are
tax-exempt bonds maturing in amounts ranging from $315,000 to $385,000
through 2027. Interest rates range from 4.25% to 4.30%. The bonds are
secured by an unconditional and irrevocable guarantee by the County of
Essex and certain revenues.
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()

@

(k)

()

(m)

The $235,845,000 Essex County Improvement Authority Project
Consolidation Revenue Bonds Series 2007 (Refunding Project) were
issued to refund various previously issued bonds of the Essex County
Improvement Authority and the County of Essex and to provide for certain
costs in connection with the issuance of the Bonds. In conjunction with the
sale of the Sportsplex Stadium (See Note 5D) during 2016 funds were
provided to refund $920,000 of the Series 2007 bonds outstanding. In 2017,
funds were provided to refund the last payment of the 2007 Series
Consolidation Bonds in the amount of $33,455,000. (See note 4(h))

The remaining bonds are payable in annual instaliments on December 15,
ranging from $25,270,000 to $46,175,000 between 2018 and 2022 at
interest rates ranging from 5.0% to 5.25%. The bonds are secured by an
unconditional and irrevocable guarantee by the County of Essex and
certain revenues.

The $12,480,000 Parking Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 were issued to
provide funds for the Bloomfield Parking Authority Project. The bonds are
term bonds, payable on December 15, ranging from $5,000 in 2019 to
$1,500,000 in 2040. The bonds are Recovery Zone Economic
Development Bonds and are Federally Taxable-lssuer Subsidized. The
bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 7.275% to 8.008%. The Bonds
are secured by the Township of Bloomfield. (See Note 4(i))

The $11,300,000 Variable Rate Demand Multi-Family Housing Revenue
Bonds, Series 2010 were issued for the Fern Senior Housing Project. The
bonds are payable in one (1) installment in 2040 and interest is at a
variable rate. (See Note 4(j))

The $42,185,000 City of Newark Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2010 A are
term bonds. The bonds are payable in annual installments on November 1,
ranging from $1,915,000 in 2018 to $3,760,000 in 2030. The remaining
bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 4.0% to 6.0%. The Bonds are
secured unconditionally and irrevocably by the City of Newark.

The $30,255,000 City of Newark Lease Revenue Bonds, Series 2010B are
term bonds. The bonds are payable in annual instaliments on November 1,
ranging from $1,380,000 in 2018 to $2,580,000 in 2030. The remaining
bonds bear interest at rates ranging from 4.25% to 5.75%. The Bonds are
secured unconditionally and irrevocably by the City of Newark.
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(n)

(0)

(s)]

(@

(1)

The $2,570,000 Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011 for NIPAC
were issued to provide funds for the advance refunding of $2,520,000 of the
Authority’s Bonds, Series 1998. The bonds are term bonds; final annual
instaliment on October 1 is $375,000 in 2018. The remaining bonds bear
interest at 3.0%. The bonds are secured by an unconditional and
irrevocable guarantee by the County of Essex and certain revenues.

The $2,695,000 Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011 for
Riverbank were issued to provide funds for the advance refunding of all
$2,685,000 of the Authority’'s Bonds, Series 1998. The bonds are term
bonds and the final annual instaliment of $460,000 is due on October 1,
2018. The remaining bond bears interest rate at 3.0%. The bonds are
secured by an unconditional and irrevocable guarantee by the County of
Essex and certain revenues.

The $3,825,000 Lease Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2011 for Social
Services were issued to provide funds for the advance refunding of
$3,715,000 of the Authority’s Bonds, Series 1998. The bonds are term
bonds, payable in annual instaliments on October 1, ranging from $220,000
in 2018 to $325,000 in 2027. The remaining bonds bear interest at rates
ranging from 3.0% to 5.0%. The bonds are secured by an unconditional
and irrevocable guarantee by the County of Essex and certain revenues.

The $52,540,000 Essex County Improvement Authority General Obligation
Project Consolidation Revenue Bond Series 2013 (Refunding Project) were
issued to refund all remaining 2003 Series of County Correctional Facility
Bonds.

The Bonds were issued in one Series and are tax-exempt bonds maturing
in amounts ranging $4,545,000 to $6,905,000 from 2018 to 2022. Interest
rates range from 4.0% to 5.0%. The Bonds are secured by an
unconditional and irrevocable guaranty of the County of Essex. In
conjunction with the sale of the Sportsplex Stadium (See Note 5D) during
2016 funds were provided to refund $165,000 of the Series 2013 bonds
outstanding. (See Note 4(k))

The $58,255,000 Essex County Improvement Authority General Obligation
Project Consolidation Revenue Bonds Series 2014 (Refunding Project were
issued to refund $65,245,000 of the 2004 Project Consolidation Revenue
Bonds).

The Bonds were issued in one series and are tax-exempt bonds maturing in
amounts ranging from $2,455,000 to $10,270,000 from 2018 to 2022.
Interest rates ranging from 4.0% to 5.0%. The Bonds are secured by an
unconditional and irrevocable guaranty of the County of Essex. (See Note

4(1)
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BONDS PAYABLE — RESTRICTED FUND (CONTINUED)

()

®

(u)

The $90,000,000 Solid Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds Series 2015. The
bonds were issued to provide improvements at the County Cogen Plant. The
bond will mature on July 1, 2045. Interest will be at 5.25% annually. The
Bonds are limited obligations of the Authority and, except to the extent
payable out of Bond proceeds or any income from the investment thereof, will
be payable solely from, and secured solely by, a pledge of payments derived
by the Authority under a Loan Agreement dated as of August 1, 2015, as
amended with Covanta Holding Corporation (the “Company”).

In addition, the full and prompt payment of principal and purchase price of,
premium, if any, and interest on, the Bonds will be guaranteed by Covanta
Energy LLC, a wholly-owned, direct subsidiary of the Company, pursuant to a
Guaranty Agreement, to be dated as of August 1, 2015 (the “Guaranty”). The
Bonds are not secured by the project, nor any revenue thereof, nor any
property of the Company or the Guarantor. (See Note 4(m))

The $8,855,000 Park Terrace/Grove House Project Revenue Bonds. The
bonds were issued to provide funds for (i) finance the cost of the acquisition,
renovation and equipping of (a) a 39-unit multifamily residential rental
housing facility located at 321 Park Avenue, East Orange, Essex, New Jersey
and (b) a 33-unit multifamily residential rental housing facility located at 254
North Grove Street, East Orange, Essex, New Jersey, (ii) fund separate
accounts for the Senior Bonds and the Subordinate Series 2015C Bonds in
the Debt Service Reserve Fund, (iii) fund an operating reserve and (iv) pay
certain costs of issuance of the Bonds.. The semi-annual maturity range is
$5,000 in 2018 to $480,000 in 2053 at interest rates ranging from 5.0% to
7.0%. The Bonds are secured by provisions of the Trust Estate created in the
indenture which includes all right, title and interest of the Authority in and to
various assets. (See Note 4(n))

The $38,460,000 Essex County Improvement Authority General Obligation
Project Consolidation Revenue Bonds Series 2017 (Refunding Project were
issued to refund $5,210,000 of the 2005 Refunding Bonds (See Note 8(e))
and $33,455,000 of the 2007 Refunding Bonds (See Note 8(i)). The Series
2017 Bonds are not subject to redemption prior to their stated maturities.

The Bonds were issued in one series and are tax-exempt bonds maturing in
amounts ranging from $200,000 to $34,020,000 from 2018 to 2027. Interest
rates ranging from 2.0% to 2.125%. The Bonds are secured by an
unconditional and irrevocable guaranty of the County of Essex. (See Note

4(0))
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Debt Service Obligation

All debt service obligations due during the year 2017 have been satisfied. The
aggregate remaining maturities of bonds payable for the next five (5) years and

every five (5) years thereafter as of December 31, 2017 are as follows:

Next five (5) years:

2018
2019
2020
2021
2022

Every five (5) years thereafter:

2023
2024
2025
2026
2027

2028
2029
2030
2031
2032

2033
2034
2035
2036
2037

2038
2039
2040
2041
2042
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Restricted Fund
Principal Only

$ 43,267,382

45,451,982
57,652,395
61,813,044
66,083,940

274,268,743

55,410,092
23,111,513
18,893,214
36,895,208
19,812,509

153,122,536

17,365,129
18,378,083
19,081,383
950,054
1,039,104

56,813,753

1,143,551
1,248,414
1,363,713
1,489,465
1,625,693

6,870,836

1,767,417
1,914,660
13,377,444
605,796
634,740

18,300,057

*
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BONDS PAYABLE ~ RESTRICTED FUND (CONTINUED)

DECEMBER 31, 2017

Debt Service Obligation (Continued)

Every five (5) years thereafier (continued):

2043
2044
2045
2046
2047

2048
2049
2050
2051
2052

2053

Less: Current Portion

Noncurrent Portion

$17,200,000 in 2026. (Note 8(a))

** Includes maturity of a “bullet” final payment of $11,300,000 for the 2010 Fern

Senior Housing Project (Note 8 (k))

*** Includes maturity of a “bullet” final payment of $90,000,000 for the 2015 Solid
Waste Disposal Revenue Bonds, Covanta Project. (Note 8(s))
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Restricted Fund

Principal Only

$ 664,303
694,514
90,633,771
370,000
390,000

92,752,688

410,000
435,000
455,000
485,000
505,000

2,290,000

535,000

535,000

$ 604,953,513
43,267,382

$ 561,686,131

Includes maturity of a “bullet” final payment for the 1986 PGLP Loan balance of
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THE ESSEX COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Note 8. BONDS PAYABLE — RESTRICTED FUND (CONTINUED)

Summary of Debt — Restricted As of December 31, 2017

Original Balance County Debt Other Debt Cumulative
Amount December 31, Direct & Not County County Paid
Note 8 Issued 2017 Guaranteed Guaranteed Guaranteed Down
a $ 250,000,000 $ 17,200,000 $ 8,629,500 $ 8,570,500 $ 232,800,000
b 5,500,000 3,285,000 3,285,000 (N) 2,215,000
c 188,565,000 93,240,000 93,240,000 95,325,000
d 7,400,000 6,678,513 6,678,513 (H) 721,487
e 11,515,000 1,875,000 1,875,000 9,640,000
f 14,420,000 2,445,000 2,445,000 11,975,000
g 41,865,000 23,075,000 23,075,000 18,790,000
h 13,215,000 1,070,000 1,070,000 (N) 12,145,000
i 235,845,000 174,760,000 174,760,000 61,085,000
i 12,480,000 12,480,000 12,480,000 (B) -
k 11,300,000 11,300,000 11,300,000 (H) -
I 42,185,000 35,275,000 35,275,000 (N) 6,910,000
m 30,255,000 24,685,000 24,685,000 (N) 5,570,000
n 2,570,000 375,000 $ 375,000 2,195,000
0 2,695,000 460,000 460,000 2,235,000
p 3,825,000 2,680,000 2,680,000 1,145,000
q 52,540,000 16,040,000 16,040,000 36,500,000
r 58,255,000 40,725,000 40,725,000 17,530,000
s 90,000,000 90,000,000 90,000,000 (C) -
t 8,855,000 8,845,000 8,845,000 (H) 10,000
u 38,460,000 38,460,000 38,460,000 -
$ 1,121,745000 $ 604,953,513 $ 402,389,500 $ 202,189,013 $ 375000 $ 516,791,487
Guarantor:

(N) = City of Newark

(B) = Township of Bloomfield
(H) = Housing

(C) = Covanta
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Note 10.

THE ESSEX COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY

NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

OTHER DEBT

There are no outstanding Bond Anticipation Notes or no other debt authorization
outstanding as of December 31, 2017 or as of the date of this report.

PENSION PLAN — PERS

Description of Systems

The State of New Jersey, Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) is a cost-
sharing multiple-employer defined benefit pension plan administered by the State of
New Jersey, Division of Pensions and Benefits (the Division). For additional
information about PERS, please refer to Division's Comprehensive Annual Financial
Report (CAFR), which can be found at http://www.nj.gov/treasury/pensions/financial-
reports.shtmi

The vesting and benefit provisions are set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A. PERS provides
retirement, death and disability benefits. All benefits vest after ten years of service,
except for medical benefits, which vest after twenty-five (25) years of service or
under the disability provisions of PERS. Substantially all of the Authority’s
employees participate in the PERS.

Public Employees' Retirement System

The Public Employees' Retirement System (PERS) was established January 1, 1955
under the provisions of N.J.S.A. 43:15A to provide coverage, including post-
retirement health care, to substantially all full-time employees and all that qualify of
the State or any county, municipality, school district or public agency provided the
employee is not a member of another State-administered retirement system.
Membership is mandatory for such employees and vesting occurs after eight to ten
years of service and twenty-five years for health care coverage. The following
represents the membership tiers for PERS:

Tier Definition
1 Members who were enrolled prior to July 1, 2007
2 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after July 1, 2007 and

prior to November 2, 2008

3 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after November 2, 2008
and prior to May 22, 2010

4 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after May 22, 2010 and
prior to June 28, 2011

5 Members who were eligible to enroll on or after June 28, 2011
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DECEMBER 31, 2017

PENSION PLAN —~ PERS (CONTINUED)

Public Employees' Retirement System (Continued)

Service retirement benefits of 1/55th of final average salary for each year of service
credit is available to tiers 1 and 2 members upon reaching age 60 and to tier 3
members upon reaching age 62. Service retirement benefits of 1/60th of final
average salary for each year of service credit is available to tier 4 members upon
reaching age 62 and tier 5 members upon reaching age 65. Early retirement
benefits are available to tier 1 and 2 members before reaching age 60, tiers 3 and 4
with 25 or more years of service credit before age 62 and tier 5 with 30 or more
years of service credit before age 65. Benefits are reduced by a fraction of a percent
for each month that a member retires prior to the age at which a member can receive
full early retirement benefits in accordance with their respective tier. Tier 1 members
can receive an unreduced benefit from age 55 to age 60 if they have at least 25
years of service. Deferred retirement is available to members who have at least 10
years of service credit and have not reach the service retirement age for the
respective tier.

Funding Policy

The contribution policy for PERS is set by N.J.S.A. 43:15A and requires contributions
by active members and contributing employers. Employee contributions for 2017
were seven and 20/100th percent (7.20%) and effective July 1, 2017, employee
contributions increased to seven and 34/100th percent (7.34%) of the employee's
base wages.

The local employers’ contribution amounts are based on an actuarially determined
rate, which includes the normal cost and unfunded accrued liability. Chapter 19, P.L.
2009 an option for local employers of PERS to contribute 50% of the normal and
accrued liability contribution amounts certified for payments due in State fiscal year
2009. Such employers will be credited with the full payment and any such amounts
will not be included in their unfunded liability. The actuaries will determine the
unfunded liability of those retirement systems, by employer, for the reduced normal
and accrued liability contributions provided under this law. This unfunded liability will
be paid by the employer in level annual payments over a period of 15 years
beginning with the payments due in the fiscal year ended June 30, 2012 and will be
adjusted by the rate of return on the actuarial value of assets.

E
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THE ESSEX COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
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DECEMBER 31, 2017

Note 10. PENSION PLAN — PERS (CONTINUED)

Funding Policy (Continued)

Employer's contributions are actuarially determined annually by the Division of
Pensions. The Authority’s contributions to the plan for the past three (3) years are as

follows:
Authority Share
Fiscal Contribution Employees
Year Normal Accrued Net Cost Contribution
2017 $ 19,108 $ 118,992 $ 138,100 $ 85,608
2016 17,377 80,050 97,427 75,552
2015 15,885 73,481 89,366 68,577

The information for PERS was abstracted from State of New Jersey Public
Employees’ Retirement System Schedules of Employer Allocations and Schedules of
Pension Amounts by Employer as of June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016 Independent
Auditor’'s Report dated April 27, 2018 and April 20, 2017, respectively.

The Authority reported a liability of $3,647,981 and $3,880,237 for its proportionate
share of the net pension liability at December 31, 2017 and December 31, 2016,
respectively. The net pension liability was measured as of June 30, 2017 and June
30, 2016 and the total pension liability used to calculate the net pension liability was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of those dates. The Authority’s proportion of
the net pension liability was based on a projection of the Authority’s long-term share
of contributions to the pension plan relative to the projected contributions of all
participating entities, actuarially determined.

[Measurement Date]
June 30,
017 2016
Local Group Share $ 23,278,401,588 $29,617,131,759
Authority Proportionate Percentage 0.0156710995 % 0.0131012912 %
Difference - Increase 0.0025698083
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PENSION PLAN — PERS (CONTINUED)

Funding Policy (Continued)

For the year ended December 31, 2017, the Authority recognized pension expense
of $403,574. At December 31, 2017, the Authority reported deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to PERS from the following
sources:

Deferred Deferred
Outflows of Inflows of
Resources Resources
Changes in assumptions $ 734,943 732,248
Net difference between expected and actual experience 85,897
Net difference between projected and actual investment
earnings on pension plan investment 24,840
Changes in proportion 639,358 37,818
Authority contributions subsequent to the
measurement date 145,176
Total $ 1,630,214 § 770,066

The $1,630,214 reported as deferred outflows of resources related to pensions
resulting from entities contributions subsequent to the measurement date (i.e. for the
Authority year ending December 31, 2017, the plan measurement date is June 30,
2017) will be recognized as a reduction of the net pension liability in the Authority
year ended December 31, 2017. Other amounts reported as deferred outflows of
resources and deferred inflows of resources related to pensions will be recognized in
pension expense based on local share are as follows:

Year Ended
December 31 Amount
2018 $ 85,872
2019 129,591
2020 78,525
2021 (104,439)
2022 (76,122)
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THE ESSEX COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Note 10. PENSION PLAN — PERS (CONTINUED)

Additional Information:

Collective local employers balances at June 30, 2017 and June 30, 2016 are as

follows:

June 30, 2017 June 30, 2016
Collective deferred outfiows of resources $ 6,424,455,842 $ 8,685,338,380
Collective deferred inflows of resources $ 5,700,625,981 $ 2,830,763,540
Collective net pension liability $ 23,278,401,588 $ 29,617,131,759
Authority's proportion 0.0156710995 % 0.0131012912

Actuarial Assumptions

The total pension liability for the June 30, 2017 measurement date was determined
by an actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2015, which rolled forward to June 30, 2016.
The total pension liability for the December 31, 2017 measurement date was
determined by an actuarial valuation as of June 30, 2016. This actuarial valuation
used the following assumptions, applied to all periods in the measurement.

Inflation 2.25 Percent
Salary Increases:
Through 2026 1.65-4.15 Percent (based on age)
Thereafter 2.65-5.15 Percent (based on age)
investment Rate of Return 7.00 Percent

The actuarial assumptions used in the June 30, 2016 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for the period July 1, 2015 and rolled forward
to June 30, 2016.
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PENSION PLAN — PERS (CONTINUED)

Actuarial Assumptions (Continued)

Pre-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000 Employee Preretirement
Mortality Table for male and female active participants. For local employees,
mortality tables are set back 2 years for males and 7 years for females. In addition,
the tables provide for future improvements in mortality from the base year of 2013
using a generational approach based on the plan actuary’s modified MP-2014
projection scale. Port-retirement mortality rates were based on the RP-2000
Combined Healthy Male and Female Mortality Tables (setback one year for males
and females) for service retirement and beneficiaries of former members and a one-
year static projection based on mortality improvement Scale AA. In addition, the
tables for service retirements and beneficiaries of former members provide for future
improvements in mortality from the base year of 2013 using a generational approach
based on the plan actuary’s modified MP-2014 projection scale. Disability retirement
rates used to value disabled retirees were based on the RP-2000 Disabled Mortality
Table (set back 3 years for males and set forward 1 year for females).

The actuarial assumptions used in the July 1, 2016 valuation were based on the
results of an actuarial experience study for one period July1, 2011 to June 30, 2014.
It is likely that future experience will not exactly conform to these assumptions. To
the extent that actual experience deviates from these assumptions, the emerging
liabilities may be higher or lower than anticipated. The more the experience
deviates, the larger impact on future financial statements.

Long-Term Rate of Return

In accordance with State statute, the long-term expected rate of return on plan
investments (7.00% at June 30, 2017) is determined by the State Treasurer, after
consultation with the Directors of the Division of investment and Division of Pensions
and Benefits, the board of trustees and the actuaries. The long-term expected rate
of return was determined using a building block method in which best-estimate
ranges of expected future real rates of return (expected returns, net of pension plan
investment expense and inflation) are developed for each major asset class. These
ranges are combined to produce the long-term expected rate of return by weighting
the expected future real rates of return by the target asset allocation percentage and
by adding expected inflation.
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PENSION PLAN — PERS (CONTINUED)

Long-Term Rate of Return (Continued)

Best estimates of arithmetic rates of return for each major asset class including
PERS's target asset allocation as of June 30, 2017 are summarized in the following
table:

Target Long-term Expected
Asset Class Allocation Real Rate of Return
Absolute Return/Risk Mitigation 5.00 % 551 %
Casjh Equivalents 5.560 1.00
U.S. Treasuries 3.00 1.87
Investment Grade Credit 10.00 3.78
Public High Yield 2.50 6.82
Global Diversified Credit 5.00 7.10
Credit oriented Hedge Funds 1.00 6.60
Debt related Private Equity 2.00 10.63
Debt related Real Estate 1.00 6.61
Private Real Asset 2.50 11.83
Equity related Real Estate 6.25 9.23
U.S. Equity 30.00 8.19
Non-U.S. Developed Markets Equity 11.50 9.00
Emerging Market Equities 6.50 11.64
Buyouts/Venture Capital 8.25 13.08

Discount Rate

The discount rate used to measure the total pension liability was 5.00% as of June
30, 2017. This single blended discount rate was based on the long-term expected
rate of return on pension plan investments of 7.00%, and a municipal bond rate of
3.58% as of June 30, 2017 based on the Bond Buyer GO 20-Bond Municipal Bond
index which includes tax-exempt general obligation municipal bonds with an average
rating of AA/Aa or higher. The projection of cash flows used to determine the
discount rate assumed that contributions from plan members will be made at the
current member contribution rate and that contributions from employers will be made
based on the contribution rate in the most recent fiscal year. The local employers
contributed 100% of their actuarially determined contributions. Based on those
assumptions, the plan's fiduciary net position was projected to be available to make
projected future benefit payments of current plan members through 2040. Therefore,
the long-term expected rate of return on plan investments was applied to projected
benefit payments through 2040, and the municipal bond rate was applied to
projected benefit payments after that date in determining the total pension liability.
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PENSION PLAN — PERS (CONTINUED)

Sensitivity of The Coliective Net Pension Liability to Changes in the Discount Rate

The following presents the collective net pension liability of the Authority as of June
30, 2017 and June 30, 2016, respectively, calculated using the discount rate as
disclosed above as well as what the collective net pension liability would be if it was
calculated using a discount rate that is 1 -percentage point lower or 1- percentage-
point higher than the current rate:

June 30, 2017

At Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
4.00% 5.00% 6.00%

Authority's proportionate share of
the Local Group pension liability $ 4,525,563 $ 3,647,981 § 2,916,843

June 30, 2016

At Current
1% Decrease Discount Rate 1% Increase
2.98% 3.98% 4.98%

Authority's proportionate share of
the Local Group pension liability $ 4,754,764 $ 3,880,237 § 3,158,219

Pension Plan Fiduciary Net Position.

Detailed information about the pension plan’s fiduciary net position is available in the
separately issued Financial Report for the State of New Jersey Public Employees
Retirement  System (PERS) or by visiting their  website  at
www.state.nj.us/treasury/pensions/pers1.shtml.
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POST EMPLOYMENT RETIREMENT BENEFITS

In addition to the pension benefits described in Note 10, the Authority provides post-
retirement healthcare benefits for employees and their dependents who retire with 25
years or more of service, of which the last ten (10) years are with ECIA. Benefits
consist of full medical coverage as if the individuals were still employed, until they
become eligible for Medicare, at which time Medicare becomes the primary insurer
and the Authority plan becomes the secondary insurer. The number of employees
covered and approximate cost for the past three years were as follows:

The Authority is a participant in the New Jersey State Health Benefit Program
(“NJSHBP") for active and retired employees. The NJSHBP provides medical,
prescription drug, mental health/substance abuse and Medicaid Part B
reimbursement to retirees and their spouses and dependents.

The Authority provides for the retiree health benefits on a “Pay as You Go’ basis.
The Authority’s contributions to NJSHBP for the last three years were as follows:

Fiscal Year Number of Employees Employer's Cost
2017 2 $ 20,320
2016 2 23,653
2015 2 26,604

The NJSHBP as of July 1, 2016 had statewide for all groups of employees of
355.534 active and 229,020 retired for a total of 584,554 members. The Authority
had 20 active and 2 retired employees for a total of 22.

An actuarial valuation as of July 1, 2016 (issued June of 2017) was performed for the
NJSHBP for all local active and retired employees plan-wide for the projected
benefits obligation.

In accordance with GASB’s 43 and 45, the NJSHBP has been determined to be a
cost-sharing multiple-employer plan. Under GASB 45, the Authority is not required
nor allowed to accrue reserves to fund the ultimate payment of the retirees health
benefit obligation that is being earned.

Funding Policy — The contribution requirements of plan members are established
and may be amended by the state legislature. Participating local government units
are contractually required to contribute at a rate assessed each year by the
NJSHBP. The NJSHB Commission sets the employer contribution rate based on the
annual required contribution of the employers (ARC) as established in an annual rate
recommendation report.
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POST EMPLOYMENT RETIREMENT BENEFITS (CONTINUED)

Plan Description — NJSHBP (Continued)

The NJSHBP issues a publicly available financial report that includes financial
statements and required supplementary information for the NJSHBP and the
actuarial valuation. Those reports may be obtained by writing to the State of New
Jersey Department of Treasury, Division of Pension and Benefits, 50 West State
Street, Trenton, NJ 08625-0299 or on the State of New Jersey website.

MAJOR CUSTOMERS

The airport revenue is comprised of three main components:

(i) LeasellLicense Revenues — there are five (5) major aviation leases of hangar and
office space. There are ninety-eight (98) T-hangars and two hundred sixty-eight
(268) tie-down spaces available.

(i) Fuel (avgasljet) Sales — in 2017 there was one FBO with the contractual right to
sell fuel. Because of the fuel sale component, the FBO revenues from this
source to the Authority are usually higher than others. However, the contract is
not exclusive and the Authority retains the right to offering fueling services on its
own or through others.

(iiiy Landing Fees — the Authority charges landing fees to those non-based aircraft
owners that land at the airport.

COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

A. Litigation

The Authority is party to various legal proceedings. These legal proceedings are
not likely to have a material adverse impact on the Authority, based upon inquiry
of management with exception of the following:

The Authority has been court-ordered to contractually indemnify Celanese, Ltd.,
a prior owner of Authority owned property located on Doremus Avenue ("Site"),
for alleged environmental liabilities relating to the historic release of contaminants
into the Lower Passaic River Study Area ("LPRSA") portion of the Diamond Alkali
Superfund Site. As the former owner and operator of the Site, Celanese faces
joint and several CERCLA liability for these alleged releases.
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Note 13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES

A. Litigation (Continued)

As the contractual indemnitor for Celanese’s alleged environmental liabilities
related to its former Site, the Authority has joined the the LPRSA Cooperating
Parties Group's ("CPG"), which is implementing several Environmental Protection
Agency ("EPA") Administrative Orders on Consent (“ACOs”) requiring the
performance of a Remedial Investigation/Feasibility Study ("RI/FS") as well as
some targeted remediation of contamination at RM 10.9 of the LPRSA. The
Authority is actively managing and attempting to mitigate this alleged
environmental liability. As a member of the CPG, the ECIA is directly funding the
Celanese Site’s interim pro-rata share of financial responsibility to the group.

The EPA has approved (subject to an additional party's consent) the ECIA to
directly sign on to the ACOs in order to obtain contribution protection for its past
expenditures. There are numerous potentially responsible parties (PRPs) with
alleged discharges of hazardous substances into the Lower Passaic River
("*LPR"). These additional PRPs may further share responsibility for remediating
the LPRSA. The ECIA along with members of the CPG are funding and
conducting an ongoing targeted removal action at RM 10.9, and an RI/FS of the
entire 17 miles of the LPR.

The EPA has completed its Focused Feasibility Study and the agency issued its
Record of Decision on March 3, 2016 (ROD). The agency selected a final
sediment remedy that includes a bank-to-bank removal of all sediment in the
lower 8.3 miles of the LPR followed by capping the river bottom, and an interim
remedy requiring additional study of the water column (collectively designated
Operable Unit 2 (OU 2) of the Diamond Alkali Superfund Site). The ROD
represents one of three remaining remedial actions for the LPRSA. A proposed
third operable unit (OU3) will address the full 17 miles of the LPRSA, including
the sediments above river mile 8.3, and a river-wide remedy for the surface
water. The fourth operable unit (OU4) will address the Newark Bay Study Area.
LPRSA PRPs may have additional responsibility for alleged contamination in
these additional operable units. Additionally, the Federal Trustees retain
independent Natural Resource Damages claims which they intend to prosecute
against LPRSA PRPs.

The EPA has estimated the discounted cost of the ROD at $1.38 billion ($2.3
billion on an undiscounted basis). The EPA and the Federal Trustees have
recently filed proofs of claim in a related bankruptcy matter in which they have
estimated the range of their respective CERCLA and Natural Resource Damages
claims for the entire LPRSA at $7,139,909,256 to $11,907,909,256.
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Note 13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

A. Litigation (Continued)

The EPA has further directed PRP Occidental Chemical Corporation (“Occidental
Chemical”) to perform the entire remedial design (RD) for the lower 8.3 miles of
the Passaic River remediation adopted in the ROD. Occidental Chemical has
executed a settlement agreement with EPA to perform the RD which includes
sampling, evaluating technologies, and doing the engineering work necessary
before physical cleanup work can begin. Occidental Chemical will also pay for
the EPA’s related oversight costs. The EPA will pursue additional agreements
with the more than 100 additional PRPs.

The EPA has proposed and is funding a final allocation process that will allocate
percentage shares of responsibility to both participating and certain non-
participating PRPSs. The allocation process will provide a basis for EPA to (1)
enter into early OU2 settlements with a group of appropriate PRPs, and (2) to
identify performing parties that are expected to enter into a future consent decree
to perform the approved remedial action for OU2. The allocation process is
under development however both ECIA and Celanese are expected to
participate. It is not known at this time whether ECIA and Celanese will receive
an offer to settle with EPA and receive concomitant contribution protection for
OU2. Those PRPs that do not receive buyouts or settlements will be required to
fund and or perform the final approved bank-to-bank remedial action (RA) for
OU2. In the event that Occidental Chemical and the other PRPs do not agree to
voluntarily perform the activities required in the ROD, EPA could issue unilateral
orders compelling performance. These orders could be judicially challenged.

At this time, it is unknown whether Occidental Chemical or the remaining PRPs
will voluntarily agree to perform the RA contemplated in the ROD. Likewise, the
PRPs have not undertaken a final allocation process to allocate individual
responsibility, if any, for the costs associated with these obligations. Based on
the above, we cannot reasonably estimate the ECIA’s final proportionate share of
response costs or natural resource damages at this time. The amount of the
ECIA’s final pro-rata share of LPRSA response costs and natural resource
damages however could have a material adverse impact on the agency's
finances.
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Note 13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

B. Grants

The Federal Aviation Authority (FAA) provided 75% of the purchase price of the
airport when it was acquired in 1974. In the event of sale or disposal of the
airport property, the Authority must reimburse the FAA an amount equal to 75%
of the net proceeds of the sale or disposal if the proceeds are not reinvested in
an FAA approved property.

The Authority participates in federally and state assisted grant programs. These
programs are subject to program compliance audits by the grantors or their
representatives. The Authority is potentially liable for expenditures which may be
disallowed pursuant to the terms of these grant programs. Management is not
aware of any material items of noncompliance which would result in the
disallowance of program expenditures. Refer to Note 6(a).

C. Internal Revenue Service Arbitrage Rebate Liability

On the fifth (5™) anniversary date of the issuance of any bond, a review shall be
conducted to determine if the bond proceeds have been expended in accordance
with IRS regulations. If said bond proceeds have not been expended in
accordance with said regulation, an arbitrage rebate calculation must be
performed. If the arbitrage rebate calculation results in an amount due and is
filed late, penalties and interest could be added to the obligation. In 2017, the
ECIA had four (4) bond issues reviewed for rebate and no liability exists. The
following deals were reviewed:

e $8,590,000 Airport Revenue and Refunding Bonds, Series 2007

e $12,480,000 Series 2010 Recovery Zone Economic Development Bonds
(Bloomfield Parking Authority Project)

e $235,485,000 Project Consolidation Revenue Bonds, Series 2007

e $10,510,000 County of Essex General Obligation Guaranteed Lease
Revenue Refunding Bonds, Series 2012 (County Correctional Facility
Project)
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THE ESSEX COUNTY IMPROVEMENT AUTHORITY
NOTES TO FINANCIAL STATEMENTS (CONTINUED)
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Note 13. COMMITMENTS AND CONTINGENCIES (CONTINUED)

D. Preliminary Expenses

The ECIA has advanced funds and charged to operations of the Unrestricted —
Development and Assistance Fund to the Restricted Fund over the past three (3)
years for two (2) county supported projects and one (1) ECIA related project.
These projects are accounted for as part of the Restricted Funds. It is uncertain
whether the funds will be ultimately refunded to ECIA Unrestricted Funds and as
such, no accounts receivable nor interfund payable to the Development and
Assistance Fund has been established. The details are as follows:

ECIA Expended Unexpended
Total interest through Balance at

Project Contributions  Earned Dec 31,2017 Dec 31, 2017
Newark Riverfront Park $ 1,482,000 $ 97 $ 1,467,768 $ 15,203
Newark Property Acquisition 195,000 320 126,938 68,382
Airport Obstruction Removal 200,000 501 104,853 95,648

Refer to Supplementary Schedule #2 Restricted Funds (Page 5 of 5) for related Reserve
account.

Note 14. NET POSITION — NET INVESTMENT IN CAPITAL ASSETS

The net investment in capital assets of $19,730,606 is calculated as follows:

Development &

Total Assistance Airport
Capital assets, net of depreciation $ 25,927,591 $ 62,522 $ 25,865,069
Less: -
Bonds payable (used to build or (6,145,000) (6,145,000)
acquire capital assets) -
Unamortized deferred premium (51,985) (51,985)

$ 19,730,606 $ 62,522 $ 19,668,084

-79 -



REQUIRED SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION




*1102Z '0€ aunp JO Se %00°G 01 91.0Z ‘0E aun[ Jo Se %86’ woi) pabueyo ajes Junoosip ay} - suoydwnssy jo sabueyd

"auUouU a1am alay) - sabuey) Jysusg
:uoneunoyuf Aejuawajddng patdinbay 03 sajoN

‘pajidLuod aq jjim ajnpayos eak (01) us)

[In} e AjlenjueAs ‘§LOZ ‘L€ Jequiana( papue Jeak ay) Buunp pajuswajdwi sem gg gSvO se pajuasaid ale uojeuloul jo sieak (1) oy ise| syl AjuQ 910N

% ¢L 8V

% 8.°€9¢C
6v5'L28 $
vi0'0LC $

% 965551100

% ¢6'LYy

% S9'¥62
195'606 $
gs0‘089'c ¢

% 85568¢€6110°0

% LO'0¥% 0L'8t Ayjigel uoisuad
{10} 3y} Jo abejussied e se uonisod Jau Aeionpy ueld

% 96°'6/€ % LE'€0¢E jjoiAed safojdwa-paianod s) jo abejusaied e se
(19sse) Aupgel uoisuad jau sy} jo aleys ajeuoiodoid sALoyiny

¥10C

L-ISYd 8Inpsyds

Gioc

ZLeieo’ 8 6.¢'90L'L $ ic:hed pasenod sAloyiny

l£2'088'c  § 186'2v9'c  § (1osse) Anjigel) uoisuad Jau 8y Jo aieys sjeuoipodosd s Auouyiny

021620L€L0°0 66601295100 (1osse) Aupgey uoisuad Jeu ayj jo uontodoud s Aoyiny
910z 2102

» SHVIA TTVOSIHd (7) N0 LSV
(SH3d) W3LSAS INFWIHILTY SITA0TdINT Orand

ALIEVIT NOISNAd L3N HHL 40 FYVHS 31VNOILYOdO¥d S.ALIRMOHLANY FHL 4O FTNAIAHOS

NOILVINHOANI A¥VININITddNS a3¥INOIY 40 F1NAIHIS
ALIROHLNY LNIIWIAOULINT ALNNOD XISSH

-80-



-/ 10Z'0S sunp Jo se 94,00°S 01 9102 ‘0 aunf jo se %86°c woiy pabueyo ajel Junodsip auyj - suogdwnssy jo sabuey)
‘auoU alem alay} - sabuey) Jyausg
:uonewlosuj Aejuawajddng pasinbay 0} sajoN

‘pa|idwon aq M Sinpayos siesh (gL) usy |ing e Afenjuang
‘G10Z ‘L€ Jequaneg papus JeaA syy Buunp pajuswaldwi sem g9 gSVO se pajuasald ale uolewoul Jo sieak () 1oy ise| sy AjuQ BN

% LLZL % €8'6 % G0'0L % ZL'EL lloihed ashojdwa-paianod jo abejusalad e sk suoinguuod

6v5'lee  $ 195606 ¢ AR AR 6.¢'90L'L $ lioiAed pasanod sAoyiny

SUON SUON SUON SUoN (sse0x®) Aousiolep uoHNQLIUCD

696'66 ¢ 99¢'68 $ gpo'zol S VAN ] 4 uoinquUIuoo palinbai Ajjenjoeljucd auj o} uoie|al ul suolNGLIU0D

69666 $ 99¢'68 $ cy9'zoL 3 g/L'syl ¢ uonnquIuos palnbal Ajenjoeljuo)
102 §10¢ gLod 2102

» SHVAA TTVOSId (7) ¥N0d4 LSV'1
{S¥dd) W3ALSAS INIJIWIHILIY SF3AO0TdINE OITaNnd
SNOILNGIILNOD S.ALRIOHLNV 40 FTNJIHOS
ALIMOHLNYV LNIINJAOHdINT ALNNOD X3SS3

¢-ISY SInpayosg

-81-



SUPPLEMENTARY INFORMATION




0ee'869'2y $  ¥6CLL9'L $§  veE”Y ¢ 0/6°0e8'r $ 8E0'BEE'LE $ v6S.¥R6  $
185'£26'SC 690'698'62 22529
185°426'Se 690'698'SZ 22529
000520 000's20'¢
000°5.0°c 000'520°
SOp'g0L Sov'e0t
Sov'80L S0b'801
y££'285'81 y62'LL9' yeg'y 0.58°6S.'1 $95'¥9e'S T.0'68.'6
66.'Gec’t 1 v9.'see’l
000°201 000201
696'8¢ 8/5'cl 8LE'Y G69'LL 6LE'S
zse'evl ore'ee €0L'Ly 6008
652°.9 65229
¥56'S06'9L  $  Crp'0LS'L  §  bes'y $ ¢6L1SL'L $  L06'8eT'S ¢ ossore's ¢
punj 1677 Bupped X8|dsyiodg o] Bupied [odiy ERVEEES
pajouisaun xsjdspods jeloueul4 pue
|ej04 juswdojaasg
ALIALLOV A8 ONNd4 3LORILSIUNN
11021 938W353d
NOILLISOd 13N 40 INJINJLVLS ONINIGINOD
ZioTees ALHOHINY INGWIAOYJIWI AINAOO X3SST FHL

| sInpayog

sjasse [ejo )
$19SSE JUBLNOUOU (10

jou ‘sjesse jenden
'S]aSSE JUBLINOUON

sases| Buioueul 10811P Ul JUBWISIAUI JON
seses| Bupueuly J084p Ul JUBUWISSAU] JouU pajollsay
sjosse pajoLlsal [ejo ]

SjuBWISaAUI pue sjuajeainbe yses ‘ysen
'$1985. POJOLISON

s}osse Juaund [ejo g

8jqeAladal punjenu|
8|geAIaoal punysjul
SJOSSE JUBLND JBYI0
3jqeAIa03l SJUNOIVY
AlojusAuy
SJUSUISaAUL pue sjusjeAainba yses ‘yse)d
‘sjasse Juauny

S13SSsv

-82-



1 aInpsyog

e6E'v0Z'ce ¢ o0le'6ee’t § vES'Y $ $00'9.0'vT $ 16L'v8LL $
282196'L1L PE8'Y $ SLG'662'Y ££6'059'L
(RE-FAR-) o/geee’t ¢ Sov'80L 9eL'v9
oog‘oeL'6l  $ #80'889'61 $ zes'ze $
586°LS $ S86°LS $
686°LS $ G86'1S $
ope'iPr'yL ¢ peEe'lee $ $ o0/6'0e8'y ¢ 6¥00LZ. $ ecop'eg0’c ¢
000°099'g 000'615'2 000'GL'9
000°'099'8 000°616' 000'svL'e
ov6'18L'S ¥26'LEE 0.5'61€'C 670'G90°L £0r'e90'2
66.'6ee"L L95'¢cee 281'896 SL0'vT se
Lpliog'e PAs1o% 4 $ $ 88¢'/8/ ye0'ove g9e'eg0'c ¢
000'sse’L $ 000'09S $  000°569 $
pung o] bunjied X3jdspods o7 BUpIed podny ~F5uersissy
pajouysasun xa|dspodg {eloueul4 pue
fejoL juswdojansq
ALIALLDV AS ONNd 3LONLSIUNN
2102 1€ ¥3giNgDaa
NOI1ISOd L3N 40 INJIWILVLS ONINIGINOD
FACKACENS ALIHOHLNY LNIWIAOULINI ALNNOD XSS JHL

uonisod JoN
pajouIsasun
pajolsay
sjosse jeydes u pajsaay|
-UORISO JON

NOILISOd 13N

$82.N0S8J JO MOUI PaLIBJeP [e10L

spuog jo Buipunjay Uo ufes) pazioweul

S30UNOSAY 40 SMOTANI 0393434

sailige| [ejo L
sanijiqe]] JuanouoU [Bjo L

uonod Juaung jo Jau ‘s|igeled spuog
SSlIgel] JUSUINOUCN

$19$SY POIOLISIUN WIS Salijigel Jua.ns jejo ]

aiqeAed punjesiu|
SRl JUSLIND JBYJ0 pue sasuadxa paniody
sigeAed spuoq jo uondod usuny
:Sjessy pajouisaiun wols ajqeled saiqel juaung
‘saljiiger

SALTHEYn

-83-



LLy'60E'e $ €80°¢C $ 0sS $ 0s¥'0t $ 10'Le $ llt'os $ LEE'0LE L1 $

000°080°c 000°002'L1 uopdod JusLno Jo J8U ‘sjqeked spuog
Llv'6ze €807 0ss 08y'ol Wo'Le L1108 Lee'oLl Safliiqe] Juaund [£10}
angsal 9oUBUSIIBW pue jqep ‘euded
000'201L ojqefed punpay
080°¥ 1ee'ee $ Sfl{Igel JUBLND JBUI0 pue sasuadxe pansooy
L6E'02 £80' $ 055 $ 08t'ot $ \o'le $  Lil'og $ spedioed o} ang
000502 $ sjqeded spuoq jo uoipod aund
SILNGvIT
L11'60EE $ €802 $ 0ss $ osyolL $ 1v0'22 $ Lii'08 $ Lee’ole’ll $
000'see’e sasea} Buouey 199J1p Ul SJUBWISIAU] 18U PaJOLISal 18N
paziiin sbuegy(paunout ag o} sisc))
000'sge's sasea| fulouey 199IP Ul JUSWISAAU! 18U PaIaLISaY
000'¢60'6 sjaeAIaDal SpUoy pelolsey
16€'02 £80'C $ 0ss $ ogy'ol $ Lp0'.2 $ Lil'08 $ 899'L6E'9 SjusLISaAUL pUE SIUB|EAINDS YSED 'iseD pajoLisay
080y €99'G88'1 sjosse JuaLnd jejoL
080’y $ 959'L S}9SSE JUBLIN3 SO
100'SL sjuedioiyed wolj sng
000'c08't $ ajqeAsos! SPUOG poloISed
:§)98Se Walny
S1388v
(1oefoud J53uad (98foid xajdsuodg) (11984 1109 Qunoy) {fo1d j1er Hiunod) 2661 066l/cesl 9861
suonedUNWIOD ZH pue zQ 6661 V.i66} V 9661 sau8g - twesBoid 1vE6LI9661
{10efoud J8jusn SoMag - spuog saleg - spuog - spuog osea] weibBolg asea wesboid ueow
Kojes ajqnd) anuaAsy ased anuaasy asea anuaAay asea juauidinby juswarosduy JUBWULIBACE Pao0d
6661 So9S pesjuerens pesjuesiens uopebiiao pue Anadold Auedosd
‘spuog anusAoy uopeBiiqo uonebilao [IZEDEDS]
asear] pagjueiens {elauag [ei8usD xass3 Jo Ajuno)
uoneblqo jeisusy x9s83 jo Ajunoco xassg jo Ajunod
siemaN jo Ao

WvHO0Ud AH ONNd Q31014183
10271 € ¥3uiNaoad
SILLINEVIT ANV SLISSY 40 INIWILVLS ONINIGNOO
G401 199U ALRIOHLNY INIWIAOHINE ALNNOD X3SSH IHL
¢ @inpayosg

-84 -



oblies't $ 6£0'.89'9 $ 666'6EE'€6 $ s6¢ $ 010'L $ 829t $
000'02.'L LELIGL'e 000'0ve’ee

opL'Lol €06'GES 666'66 S6€ 0i0'1 829t

ozL'e 19L'L ore'ss

92 194 6SL't $ S6¢ $ 0Lo'} $ 8z9'} $
000'sSt $ z8e'les $

ov.'ieg’t $ GE0'/89'8 $ 666'6EE'€6 $ g6¢€ $ oi0’L $ 929'L $
000°'02.'L LeL’igL'e 000'0v2’c6

9g 198 6SL°1 G6¢ $ 0l0'L $ 829'L $
[(fANED ep0'ses ovZ'ss

ocL's 199'L ove'es $

000651 $ g8e'L2s $
{100f0id Buipunjay) {10afoid {(108foid (108f{oid Aljlided (1d0foud Aiioed (1oafoud Aljioed

$002 Aeg eupel) Bujpunjey) |euopoaLton Aunos) feuopsalion fjunon) |euopdatog fHunod)
solteg §00¢ saleg 00T seleg g £00T € ZTO0T pue 000Z ssyiag - spuog
spuog enuaAey spuog spuog enuansy sapag - spuog Y200z Sees snuansy aseay
uofjepliosuod snuanay UopIEPlIOSUCD anuoaay asear spuog pasjuesens
yoafoid Buisnoy afoid pasjueiens anuaAsy asedn uoniebliqo
Auweginiy uoneBiqo pasjueiens) jeleuag
{eisuan uofieB)iqo |eiaus xass3 jo fjunon
x9ss3 jo Ajunon xass3 jo fjunoy

Glogigaus
€ ainpayog

WVEO0d A8 ONNd G3L01ELSTY
N AEECLEREL

SISV OGNV S1ISSV 40 INJIINILVLS ONINIGWNOD

ALRROHLAV INSWIAOUJINT ALNNOD X3$S3 IHL

feoL

uoiod Juawind o Jou ‘2|qeded spuog
SeIIIgel 1uaLN3 (210

aAISSE) SoueULiUIBW pue Jqep ‘lende)

ajqeded punpuajuj

ua1ino JaYjo pue sasuadxa paniooy

syuedidpsed o} sng

ajqeAed spuoq jo uojpod waund
ISBHIIGRY JWBLRD

sALNEY

soses| Bujoueuy 1024p Ul SJUBLIISAUL JOU PajOLISSl 1N

paziin sbulwe/(paiunou; aq 0} S1so))

sases| Bupueuy 24P UL JUSWISSAU] Jau papisay

2jqBAIS08] SPUOY PBIOLISaY

SIUSUIISBAUL PUB SIUS[BAINDS YSED ‘USeD pajoLisay

S}9s5€ JUaLIng (2j0 )

SJOSSE JUALIND JALIO
sjuediopied woly ang
BiqeA@0a] SpUog PajoLsay
'sjosse JuaLng
SLASSY

- 85-



G0l €65 5€ $ TB6ELBYE LI sz0'/86CL ¢ 662'€58' VLl § 90¥'€L0'L ¢ 08500L€C $ 966'€5Y'C $
000°09g'eE 000°00€"LL 000’08y L 000°00Y 671 000'040'1 000°092'02 000'52r'C
G0L'€E0'2 6€.'8v9 $20'205 66L'€5¥ 'S¢ 90v'e 085'0v8'2 966'8C
19L°21 00g'et osy'cl 00464 0L0'e 092's2 sZY'e
18£8 6E'9E9 SYS'e6Y $ 660'V1 9ee $ oze LL5'S
000'G46'L $ 000'0se'sz § 000'618'2 $ 00002 $
GOL'E6E'GE ¢ 6EL'sbE Ll Sz0'/86Ch  $ 66L'€58 vl ¢ 90v'€L0') ¢ 08500L'€e $ 966'E5Y'C $
000°5/2's5¢
000's42'se
00000E' 11 000°08Y'21 000'00F 6% 000°020'F 000°092°0Z 000'Gev ¢
61665 6EV'9ES 4 66074 EE3 oze 115'G
0€1'29 00ETH osh'el 00L'6Ev'SC 0.0°¢ 092'0¥8'C sZv'ee
0€l'co ¢ 00g2CL osbel $ 00L6. 0.0 $ 09g'se ser'e
goo'ose'sz § 000'618°2 $ 000'02 $
17 010z 010z (198fo.d Bujpunjay) {iosfoig Buipunyey  (19s8foid Buipunjay) (10afoid Bugpunjay)
0102 1sfold spuog 1002 xajdspiodg) 9002 xe|dsyodg)
puog anuanay Buisnoy juswdojarsg s9l18S 9002 EETPETS $00Z
aseat lojuag suoz spuog anuaaay ECTTED spuog snusasy soles
WieMaN N3 Aionosay uopepijosucy) spuog uofepijosuocd spuog
10 8310 playwooig 1osfoud anuaAsy asesn yoefoid anuoAay ases
posjueleEns) pasjueiend
WYED0ud A8 NN G3LOIHLSHY
AR EE ERE
SHILINavI1 NV S1355V 40 INJWILVIS ONINIEWNOS
G ERaS XIHCHINV INSWIAOHJINT AINNOD X3583 3HL

Z 2inpayos

saliliqeit {eloL

uonod Juauno Jo jau ‘sjqeded spuog
safjiqel juaund ejo

9A1958) gouBUBIUIBW PUE jqap ‘[eldeg
ajqeded punpauj
selliiqel JuaLIND 120 pue sasuadxs paniooy
sjuedioiped o) ang
a|qeded spuog jo uoiod waund

SBNIHGEl WBLND

S3LLHAVIT

sosea| BUUEBUY 10a11P U SJUBLUISAAL! JaU PaloLIsal 1ON

paziyun sbujwegy{paunsui 8q o0} §}s0))
sasea} BupueuY 1PaJP Ul JUSWSAAU] 18U PajauIsay

B|qBAIB08) SPUOQ PRIOLISEY
SjUBUNSBAUL pue SUsleAnba YseD 'YsSeD pajoLsay
S]9SSk JUALIND [B10)
S]OSSE JUBLING B0
sjuedionied woig ang
8|qeAlad9s spuog pajoMlsay

'sjesse Juaung
S13SSV

-86 -



85v'8l 260001 $  v0.'989C $ 16e'agy $ yEY'QLE $ 1y8'9CL've $
000'09t' 000'50€'€C
6518l Z60'00L $0.'922 L6€'99Y YeY'8LE re'ley'L
€0Z's1 8¥9'G6
TR Syi'y $ 096 000'L 000’1
wl'e 16E'S yey'e L8y
000022 $ 000'09Y $ 000'5.€ $ 000°08€'L $
65¥'8l 260°001 $ $0L'989°C $ L6E'99Y $ vEY'8.LE $ Lv8'ezl've $
000°089'2 000'097 000'6.¢€ 86/'6€8'0T
(zoz'sv8’e)
000'089'2 000'08¥ 000's.e 000°689'vZ
65¥'8l 260001 $  vpl'e $ 16€'S $ yeV'C $ 6¥0'168'E $
0962 000'} 000’}
096'C $ 000t $ 000°L $
(o00zst'13 {000'00Z$ S9IIAIBG [RI20S Aled HUeqIaARy OVd N ]
- y103) - 103} 110T seleg 1102 saylag - spuog 1102 salieg - spuog oLoz
Areujunisad feAcway - spuogl anuanay asea] anuaAdy asea puog anusAay
JUOILIBARY UORONNSAD anuaaoy asea’ paajueliend pasjueiensy asean
HiemoN wodiy pasjueiend uopebilqo uopebijqo NiemoN
xass3 jo HHuno) feiauas) jesaus ol
popunjay xassg jo fHunod Xx9ss3 jo AIUNoY
papunjay papunjay
WVHS0Hd A8 ONNd QILORILSIY
110z 1€ ¥38N=03d
SILMIEVI ANV SI3SSV 40 INSWILVLS ONINIGWOD
Sio a9y ALRMOHLNY INSWIAOHUdINT ALNNOD X355 SHL

Z 8jnpayog

ssiliiqe] {ejol

uoipod jueund jo Jeu ‘ajqeded spuog

SSIHqRY JUaLND [ejo L

2AI9S3) FoUBUSUEW pue 1Gap 'fenden

ajqeded punpajuy

SaHfIGRI| JUBLIND JoUI0 pue sasusdxa panoay

ajqeded spuoq jo UOIO

s3iLriavn

syuedionied o) ang
d uaungd
1| JUSLIND

'S

seses| BuloURUY 19941p Ul SJUBWISBAUL 10U PBIOLISSI 1ON

paziinn sbujuse/(paunou; 8q 0} $1S00)
sases} Butoueuyl 10311p Ut JUSLISBAUL 13U PajoLISay

SjqEAIa0al SpUoq PaoLISaY

SIUBLWISSAUL pue Sjus|eAInba YSED 'USED PajouISey

S}9SSE JUSLIND |Blo L

sjasse JuaLINg JaYI0
sjuedioiped woly ang

aiqeAIBDa) SPUioq pajilsay

=R

‘Slasse juaund

-87 -



180'8/97208 $ €9V'6£5'8¢ $ 8l60¥i'6 $ bTL'L61°06 $ 0L8ZLL'0% $ 19Y'650°91 $ 16989
1£1'989°1L9G 000°066'LE 000'0be'8 00000006 000°042'8€ 000'GEL'6

626'166'SY €9Y'6YS 8/6°00€ vel'l6l 0./8'205'C Lov'vee'9 169'89
oys'Lob €1£'282 28€'89
000°204

080'2v9 066'cy 18521 00026 o/2'oy SeEL'LE 60€
£Z6'elS'L €LP'9E ¥80°L $TL'sol $ 009'L zee's

28¢'L92'ey $ 000'0LY $ 000's $ 000'$SY'2 $ 000°506'9 $

190'8/9'209 $ £9V'6£5°8¢ $ 8/60VL'6 $ yzl'l61'06 $ 0/8°2LL'0V $ Lav'es0'ol $ 169'89
€19'86.°09 [CEINATRA)
(18e'196'G) [CEINAT¥A]

000°08.'98

LeL'vle' ey 000°'066'L€ 000'0v8's 000'000°06 000°0.2'8€ 000'SEL’6

22.'98E'bL €lv'se 6y8'282 60€'21le' 0082 zee's 169'89
S65'8LL'LY 0662LS 6cl'gl 000°26 oLe'sey'e GEL'9L6'9

902'8zS 066'CY ezi'el 00026 $ 0/z'ov sl

200's

Z8E'SLS 0P $ 000'0Ly $ 000'G $ 000's5¥'2 $ 000'506'e $

spundg (1oefoid GLOT sslieg 10T soieg {108foid (oeloid {oo0's6L8
payaLsay Bujpunjey) spuog snusaay (308{01d BIURBAOD) Bugpungay) Bujpunjay) - y103)
lelol 110T seues yosfoid spuog y10T sees £102 salies uonisinboy
spuog sjuswisedy anuaasy spuog spuog Auadoiy
anuaAay ISNOH BA0ID fesodsig anuanay anuanay HIEMEN
uofepijosuon jaoriia) yred aisem plios uopiepliosuoc) uofiepljosuod
108foig jo0fold 108foid
WYHOO0Md A8 ONNA QaLDNLS3Y
110z71¢ ¥3an3oad
SALLIBVIT ANV S1ISSV 40 INFWHLVLS ONINIBNOD
Giogleays ALIHMOHLINY INFINIAOHdIWI ALNMNOD X38§S2 aHL

T npayos

salpiael| [ejol,

uopod Juauno jo Jau ‘sjqeled spuog

so

[qey| juatind [ejo]

SAIS51 3oURUSIUIEW pue Jqop ‘feiden

ajqeded punuajuj

SSIHIGE JUSLNG JBY0 pue Sasuadxe paniooy

syuediotued oy ang

ojqeded spuoq jo uoiod aungy

EENEER

salilqel usLnD

soses| Buiouetl} 10aJIp Ui SJUSLUISSAUL 19U PaJjaLlsal JaN

paziin sBulez/(paunou; aq o} s1$00)

sosea| ButouBUl 19311P Ut JUSWISIAU] JoU PaIoLISOY

sjqBAIS23] SPUOY POLISIY

SIUBLLISaAU pUB SjuaEANDS YSED ‘Used papuisey
$}9S5® JUSLIND [Bj0 ]

SJOSSE JUSLIND JBYIO
sjuedioued wouy eng

5jqBAIS0S] SPUOY PadLIsSay

$1388Y

‘sjasse Waind

-88-



€ |Inpayog

0.6'655¢C $ LeL'svee $ 6EZ VLE
epsGie yog'L 6ECVLE
£96'061 £96'961
Yoy ivL'L $ yov'Lvl'L $
86£'G8Y $ 86£'G8Y
2858 Ze5'8
000'06 000'06
szl'ov gzL'op
ovo'stL ov0'oL
Gl¢ S8
089'2 089'C
09b 0oy
08y'2L 08’z
G21'29 S21'29
0oe'LL 00€'41
891404 891701
00'4 020'4
§L0'€Z 620'cz
Shb'T Shb'e
0.9's 0.9's
6.9's 6.9'0
ove'es ovz'ee
$8z'e s8z'c
69E'€LTY 69c'cL2t
855'G1 8G5'G1
L12'266'L L12'285'L
8v9'09 89'09
85€'9/6 86€'9/6
6ZS'vIY 625'vit
srv'ee evy'6ee
L'l $ LUl
pumy BUBiEd XS[dspods jo7 bunjied yiodny BOUBISISSY
pajousaiun xa|dspodg |eloueuly pue
el juawdoiansQ
ALIAILOV Ag GNNJ Q3 151UISTUNN
210z 1€ Y39INS530 G30N3 4V3A IHL 903
NOILISOd 13N Ni 3ONVHD OGNV
SISNIJXE ONV SINNIATY JO INTWILVLIS ONINIGNOS
TS ALTHOHLAV INSWIAOUdNT AINMOD X3SS3 IHL

Bupped

BWIODUL SNOBUR||RISIN

siounp

$99) aARHSIUILPY
‘Bunped

sougsisse [eloueyl pue Juswidojera(]

Gloe - wm:m‘_o seqy
SLOZ - BJURAOD
102 - Bupunjay uoneplosuo Jafoid
£102 - Buipunjay uollepijosuo josfoid
1102 - OVdrN
1102 - S8918g [el00S
1102 - dueqieay
pieljwoolg
0102 - ¥oegases] YemaN
0102 - wiag
2002 - Buipunjay uoyepijosuoy Josfoid
V9002 - Buipunjey xs|dspodg
9002 - Butpunjey uogepiosuo) joslold
V5002 - Buipunjay xs|dspodg
5002 - Buipunjoy uogeplosuo) Joslosd
Aeg eunlepy
$002 - Buipunjey uofiepijosuo) Jafoid
6661 Aejes oland YlemeN
'S99} juswabeuew pue sAlRISIUILIPY
:aouBlsISSE JeloueUy pue Jusuidojansd

podiy

suioou Hodie snosue(BosiN
sajes jend
Jual [BIoJawIWo)
swoout Juas JebueH-|
Jual UMop a1,
sa9} Buipue”
JUBs UoHEIAY
‘yodiy
'sanuaney

-89-



288'2.¢'C 1y8'LLL §8€'LS 9EP'8bs'L $ $98'955 [3 2> $
PLY'LLY'S 622'692 256°269 $ G69'LEL'E 98b'99. $
€52'6v9' +25'191 POTAGET $ S81'206'C 0L0'50Z $
0se'y L S8l g950'c
$€8'008 296'682 29021
olz'LL 81zt 266'G1L
000'0LL 000'CLL
§6.'62 §6.'6C
99¢£'992 ¥50'0Z ovb'ee 168'LbL 9/6'Ly
188'GL 00S 1601 6eb'0L 0s8'e
98¢'89Z 020'sy £66'vL 162'e8 9/5'v9
$26'6 080'c 080'c 59.'¢
£9/'8.¢ L0E'y9 8b9'zhi 0zZo'syl ¥6.'82
619'.¢ 9.y voL'L 6€0'9E
g6L'LL G6L'LL
Lii'se L.1's2
286'20¥%'1 Z86'20%'L
698'081 812'/2 L8¥'89 +99'99 505'vZ
2Es8's 2E5'S
$20's $20'S
L8L've 164 zv'ee 296
[1-F a4 8€.' 890'% $ $02'0¢ 95¥'9i $
0ol'ezs’l $5L'201 gLLLLe $ 602'see 8/b'195 $
0.v'669 FEERT:) 0zL9lL 0£5'5¢€ pee'est
0692214 698'ch 866'002 $ 6.9'66% pri'8le $
g62'6v8’L 9zl vy LR FECIZA A $ 655 ¥62'Y 1£8'€08 $
A ozl 8 189 $ 06L°LZ 002’y $
000°2bY 000'L¥Y
000" L¥¥ 000" ¥
€2¢'L8 £ee'L8
€2¢'LS £€2¢'.5
—pung BUiEd X3[dsiiods 107 BUppEg oAy TBOUEISIESY
pajouIsalun xa|dspodg |eloueuty pue
'L wawdoleasQ
ALIAILOV A8 ONNd Q3 LORLSIENN
Z10Z "1 € ¥AGWIOIU AIANI YVIA JHL ¥Od
NOILLISOd L3N NI JONVHO GNV
SISNIJIXT ONV SINNIAZY 40 INFWILVLS ONINIHWOD
R AN ALTHOHLAY INFWIAOHdIWI AINNOD X3SST 3HL

€ 9jnpayog

(sso7)/awoou| Buesado
sasuadx3 Jayl0 pue salees [ejo]
sasuadxe Joyjo [gj0]

U0 8 [BARIL
uonealdaq
SNOaUE||sosIN
sas} ao1nas [ediouniy
99 @9Isni}
ouRINSy|
$3OIAIDS |BUOISSJ0Id UON
S80IAI8S |BUOISSBJ01d
saoIAIes Juawdinbs 1Byl0
siiedal pue souBUBUIRW 3|0IUBA puk Alljioe]
sjiusd
Xeji fond
[enj s[oiysp
ajesal Joj [an4
seniiN
SIeNoLL
swiojun
seijddns pue [eusiEW SjoIYSA pue Ayjioed
sayddns aoijo pue Mauoyels
48ul0

-90-

sjjauag askoidwzy
salejes
'sasuadxy

SONUBASS fBlo )
8LI0oU| JsaIsl
Buyied xaidsuods

Bunped joi wnipels
‘Bupied xejdspods

xs(dspodg

sy
xa|dspodg



66€¥0Z'EE $ 0Z£'6EE") (X $ ¥009.0vC $ 161v82°L $
€82 19611 yeg'y $ A $£6'959°2
0L5'z18'L o/e'see'L S0¥'201 SEL'YO
909'0£L'64 $ ¥80'899'6L ¢ 225'29 $
66£10T'¢E $ 0/€'6EE'L yE8y $ y00'90vC ¢ 161°v8.72 $
950'v29CE £6.'86€"} 681G 02E'EP8'eT ¥6.'98Y'L
£vE'0ES $ 219 (ss¢€) $ ¥89'zeT $ 16€'162 $
€YE'0Es $ 19 (5s¢) $ vegzez $ 168262 $
(6e5'2p8'L) ¢ (oeZ'LiL) (ov2'28) ¢ (9ep'avs'L) $  (osi'pee) $ 8v0'092 $
(6v9'a) (6v9'8)
(zog'0L9) (zog'0.9)
(128'181) (L28'L81)
(roL's6e) (G2v'90¢'tL) L1€'208
gEL'Y 8cL'y
(6£6'28) 190'z (000'06)

(660'cS) 660°€S $

ovL'LS (ove'Ls) $
(z69'c08) $ (eig'cLL) $  (B2¢'0e8) $

PpuRg BUDIEg Xs[dspiods 1071 BUDJE] fodny BOUBJSISSY
pajosalun xajdsuods [eloueul4 pue
el juawdoenaq
ALIALLOV A8 GNNd G310191538NN
2102 1€ ¥38N3D30 030N 9VdA 3HL 804
NOLLISOd L3N NI IONVHD OGNV
SISNIJXS OGNV SANNIATY JO INFJWILVLS ONINIGINODS
I ALTHOHRINVY INGWIA0UIWE ALNNOD X3ISST FHL
g0 gieeus

€ anpaysg

pajouisalun

pajoLysay

sjessy |ejden ut paseAy;
‘eleg

Buipu3 ‘uonisod 19N
Buluuibeg ‘uonisod 19N

{aseas08()/asesIou] - UORISOY 1aN I aBueys

sosuadxa sono/(Japun) sanusasy
(sesuadxg)/senuasay Buneladouoy fejo]

snosuelaosIN
uonebni Jo JusWamSS Joj UOISIADIY
sainyipuadxy (ended
sjuswealibe aoIAIBs Japun anp SJUNoLLY
suonnquiueg Jueld
suognquuod felded
94 Juswabeuepy Bupled xejdspods
$s20x3g xajdspodg
asuadxa jsaieiu|

{sesuadxg)/sanuanay BuneredouoN

-91-



vl $
pl $
145 $
14’ $

(333014 xojdspiods)
ZH Pue Zd 6661
$8l8g - spuog
ANUDAIY oseaT]

pavjuesensy
uonebliqo
{es8uon)
Xxass3 jo [junon

EESIREER
¥ ainpayog

o8l $
[01:22 $
o113 $
o8l $

(1984 1109 Aunon)
v.i66l
sauag - spuog
onuaAay asea]
pasjueseng
uopebiqo
{edausn
xass3 jo funon

/8¢'} $ 98l $ Lov's $ 000°08¢ $
78¢°) $ 98l $ Lov'e $
6v0'LbL
056'8¢2
00082
005"t
00004
005°L
817
00021
000'9
Zvy'eelL
WLl $
18€°L $ 981 $ 19¥'c $ 000°08¢ $
/8¢l $ 98l $ lov's $ 089°06
02¢'682 $
(fo1d jrer Aunod) Z661 0661/¢661 9861
V 966} sauas - weifotd V66119661 weiboid ueos
- spuog asea] welboid asea] JUBLILIBA0D)
ANUIAIY ased] juawdinby Juswaaoadug poajood
uonebyqo pue Apadold Auadosd
felauasy
x9s53 o [juno)

WVH90dd At ONN4 G3LORILSHY
2102 "1 € ¥38W303A AJAN3 AVIA FHL ¥04

SHSNIdX3 ANV SINNIAZY 40 INSWILVLS ONINIGINOD

ALIHOHLNY LNIGWIAOULIWI ALNNOD X35S3 IHL

sasuadxa {ejoL

awoou; (ssuadxa) ajeqal jsausiu|
1s848JU|

1oRAUD A SAOIMSS

juswasInguisy
s39) |eba
$394 83N
a3} Bunipny
$93} |RUOISSBJ0Id
JUBJHNSUOD [BIOUBUL
$89} juabe Japus ]
$89) Jp8ID
$99} SANEASIUIWPY
sa9} Guneyleway
‘Joenuod Ag se0INBS
:sasuadxg

SINUTABY [BJO L

1saI9)
$8NUBABI douB)sIsse
jeisueuy pue juswdopasg
Senuandy

-92-



629'L $9¢£'622's 4] $
¥26'2 9 $
002'82L's

6.9'L ove'se

000'L 000's

6.9'9 oye'es

692 p9£'622'S 29 $
¥26°'C 29

619'L orb'eze's

(3oalosd (109foud (303foid Ajoey

Aeg euprep) Bupunjoy) {euon}aalion AQunog)

5002 007 seuag € £002
saeg spuog salieg - spuog
spuog anuaAey anusAdy asea
anuansy uopjepijosuon pesjueieng
BuisnoH 108foad uoieblao
Ajweginiy felausn
xass3 jo [Juno)
Siocissys

¥ ainpaysg

21T $ G566 $
FA%A $ 566 $
FA%4 $ 566 $
yA%4 $ G566 $

J99loid Ayjioed
jeuonoaLi09 [unod) |BUO11D8410D
€ Z00Z PUe YZ00Z Kuno)
saueg 000¢ saues - spuog
spuog BNUaAdY asedT
anuaaey asea pasjuelens
paajueiens uoeblGO [elausn
uonebiqo jesousn xass3 §0 Ajunon
x98s3 §0 QHuno)

WVHO0Ud Ad ONNd 03.L0IM1S3Y

4102 '1€ ¥3EW3030 030N ¥VIA SHL J04d

062’181 $

15¢
£ge'ell

085°L

00s'e
000t

080'c $

062’181 $

L5€
£€6'081 $

[(CEI O FPEUER)
stojesumuwod
Kages ailand) 6661
$9148Q ‘spuoy INUSAIY
95891 pasjueiens
uonebiqo [e1euag
saeman jo Ao

SISNIdXd ANV SIANNIAZY 4O INJWZLVLS ONINIGINOD

ALIMOHLNY INJWIACUJINI ALNNOD X3S IHL

sasuadxs (ejo)

awoouy (esuadxs) sjeqal jsasaiul
1|

joeJUOd Aq S30IAIBS

jawaesInquiIsy
599 jeba
EEETEE T
sag) Bugipny
$88) |BUOISSB)0Id
JUBHNSUOD [etoueul4
saa) jusbe sepuay
$88j HPaI1d
$88) SAlRSIILPY
so9) Bunoyrewsy
;Joejuoo Ag s30IMIBS
sosuadxy

SONUBASY [BJOJ

FEETE
SONUBAB! aouelSISSE
|eiouBLl pue Juswdoeasg
SONUBASY

-93-



16€'200°L $ 5i0'c/8'01 $ 0Ll'8y $ £0€°L2€°L $ eyt L0L $ 826'L0C $
182'C opp'el €€ £69 143 e
$85'986 §/8'6/L'0L 899Gy 05€'L6¢€'L 010'v0} 996'v61
osy'el 00.'6L 0.0'e 092'sz GZY'e 0zl'e
000'L 000's 0002 000'G 000'L 000's
08y'cL $ 00L'vL $ 0/0°'L $ 09Z'02 $ §eY'e $ ozl't $
Lge'z00't $ §10'c/8'0L $ 0..'8y $ £0e°LLE"L $ 6yt L0L $ 826'102 $
182°C opb'el €€ €69 i eve
$90°'000'L $ 6.5'658'01 $ g¢l'sy $ 019'a.€'t $ gev'i0l $ 989'L0Z $
0102 Z3y (309loig {109loag (103loqd {(30aloig (309f0id
spuog Bugpungay) Bupunjey Bupunjay) Bugpunjoy) Butpunjoy)
juawdojaaag L00Z soue8 xajdsiiodg) 900z soues xajdspodg) S00Z saues
auoz spuog 9007 91198 spuog §00Z sali8s spuog
[ITLLEN anusaasy spuog anuaaay spuog anuaAsy
pisywooig uojjepijosuon anuaAdy aseaT uogneplosuo) aNuaAaYy asea] uoyepHosuoD
joafoad pasjueieng 1efoid paajuelens) yoefoid

WVHO0Ud A9 ONNA A3LOLSTY
Z10Z71€ ¥38IN3D30 QAANT Jdv3A 3HL ¥Od
SISNIdXI ANV SINNIATY 4O LNIWILVLS ONINIGWOD
CESER RN ALIMOHLINVY INIWIAOYCIWI ALNNOD X3SS3 IHL
¥ sinpaysg

sasuadxa {ejo]

swoou; (ssuadxa) ajegal }saIsiu|
sy

Penuos Aq seanes

uswasInquIRy
saa) jeba
s98) aslsnu
sa8} Bunipny
$38) |eUOISS30Id
JUEINSUOD [etoueuly
so9j) Juabe Japual
$88} JIpaID
S99} SAlRNSIUILLPY
sa9) Buneyiewsy
JoBjUOD Aq SSOINES
'sasuadxg

SONUBAB! [BI0)

1s8183Y]
$anUSAS) BoUBjSISSE
{eroueuy pue juswdoEaag
‘senuandy

-94 -



cie 1e6'12L $ JAVEZS £89'ce $ ba'eel $ lez'zee’e $ ePr'Tel
[4%4 98¢ FA%S 80€ £66'L2 y9L'e 50z’
G/9'8Ll oov'le 000'ce $69'v0L 8£9'161'2 $82'S6
096'2 000'L gle'l SZP'so ¥$6'e2
00S 000'4 000'4 0szZ'e 0004
ooy’ $ Gie $ 2129 $ ¥56'22
t4%4 126'12) $ LLL'ze £89'€Z $ 1b9'eel $ lee'eee’e $ epp'zzL
t4%4 98¢ Li€ 80¢ €66'L2 y91's 502’
seg'iet $ 00p'ze GlE'eT $ $69'v0L $ £90'L12'C $ 6cZ'6ll
spund S3VJAIAS [RID0S Red JUeqIaAly oVd N a v 0102
9661 LLOZ SauRg LLOT SBUBS +1.0Z ssleg 0402 spuog 0402 spuog yaloid
doitii - puog - spuog - spuog aNUIASY 9SeT] 3NUAAY 95edT] BujsnoH
anusAay ases anuaAdy 8sea BNUBA3Y 953 FIEMIN NiemoN iojuag
paajueiens pasjuesens pesjuelens jo A o Ao uis4
xassg jo Qunod uoneblao uoneblqo
papunjay [EIETIETS) [ETETE )
x9ss4 o QHuno) x3ssy 0 Ajunon
papunjay papunjoy
WVI9D0dd A8 GNN4 Q3LORILS3Y
e e e
210771 ¥38W3030 A3AN= ¥VIA 3HL ¥0d4
STSNIdXH OGNV SANNIAIY 40 LINIWHLVLS ONINIBWOD
§iovissuys ATIHOHINY INJWIAOHdINT ALNNOD X4SS3 3HL

¥ 8Inpayos

sasuadxa [ejo ]

swiooy (asuadxe) ajeqal jsals)ul
1s918)u|

10BIUOD AQ $8DIAIBS

juswiasINquIay

sas} [efa

$98} sy

so3) Bupipny

588} {BUOISSI;0Id

JUBHNSUOD [eloURUL

589} yuabe Japus

$98) §paid

$88} SAIRASIUNUPY

soa) Buieyiewoy
‘jornuod Aq S8oINSS

:sasuadxy

sanuaAal [B10),

158103U)
$ANUSABI JoUElSISSE
|eroueuy pue uawdolsnad
SOnUanaY

-95-



Zv0'TeY'LE 0662 $ 851°L8¥ $ G91'c88'Y $ 080'80l¢ $ 886'/511 $  00Civl
P [y $91°99 0LLL syl 000
129'046'0E §/e'L9v 000's2L'Y 002'990'2 05h'seL'L 00Z'vyl
669'¥8. 086°ZY 18521 000'26 0.2'0% ov0'st
000'82
00S'¥
oos'el
¥59'vS 000°s yor's 0002 0002 000'Z
9171
0002t
000'9
Al
§60'G6Y 066'.E $ 8.1'6 $ 000'06 $  0/2's¢ $  ovo'ol $
we'lt
Zv0'TeY1E 066'¢t $ 891°18Y $ $91'¢88' $ 080'80l¢ $ 8£6'iSL1 $  00C'ivt
1ge'lee [V G91°99 oLt 8vL'L 000'c
169'v9Z'LE 066'2V $ o5y 08t $ 000°L1L8'Y $  0/6'90L'C $  061'95L°tL $  00Z'bi
spung {(oaloid 510z Sauds 6102 sauag (osloig (10aloud (Buipunjay
pajpuIsay Buipungay) (100fo4d Jusunsedy) (10alo1d ejuenod) Buipunjay) Buipunjay) Ayjroed
tejol LL0Z saliasg spuog spuog $10Z sauag £10Z sauag |euonoaLI0))
spuog 9SNOH BACID anusaay spuog spuog Z102
anusady SoBLIDY fesodsiq anNUBASY anuaAay $9119Q
uofepljosuo)d 3ied 3ISEM PlioS uoneplosuo) uofjeplosuod spuog
jos8foid jo9foud joafoid oNUIAIY B5BIT
paajuelens
WVH504d Ad GNNd GILONISTY
Z102 "i€ Y38NS930 U30NT 9VaA aHL 504
§ISNIdXT ANV SANNIAIY 30 INJWILviS ONINIEINOD
[FEEFEEN AITH0RINY INGWIAOUdINT ALINROD X383 3HL

¥ ainpayag

sasuadxa jejoy.

swoou| (asuadxa) ajeqal jsassiy)
JEEYEHT

1oeiUD Aq S80IMBS

uswesINqWIaYy
so9; {ebo
S99 99)ISNIL
sa9) Buipny
$39} [BUOISSB}0Id
JUBYHNSUOD [RIOUBUIS
s99) juabie jepuay
$88§ UpaIid
$98) SARISILIWPY
sag) Buneyeway
oeNueD A S80IA8S
sosusdx3y

S3NUDABY [eJ0]

1sase3yy
$ONUBASY SoURISISSE
{eioueuy pue Juswdopasg
SanusAsy

-96-



‘SjUSUIBIRIS [BIoURULS O) SOION 89S

09E€'vL0ZL  $ Zvi'0l5L $ "vesy $ 26L'IGLL $ ZI69¥E'S $ 086°0¥VE'S $

66.'29.°91 116°815°L 6vy'eZ 1y2'es9'L G88'98¥'S £0£'080'8

695162 $ 1£6'16 $ (51L9'81) $ Gv6'L6 $ (c16'6€1) $ 1.9'092 $

(oo0'012'L) (0oo0's5eS) (o00'529)

{0o00'012'L) {000°5€S) (000'5.9)

syl 000'5ES (Z¥sL19)

(zZoo'LvS) (200'1+9)

09v'sz 0gv'ez

000'GES 000'6ES

0L yv'L 1516 (G19'81) Sv6°L6 695¢50°L 119°092

252'8. G69'6Y £98't 659'¢€C GE

$0L°0L 286 (0ogz'gtL) 198'v6 (2LL'y) (20L'1)

(522'99) (gzz'99)

000'82 000'82

(516') (516'8)

(680'%) 221y (6£2'1) $ (vv6) (¥61)

yap'Le 608°L 058'¢2 50£'9

6£9°'908 896'68. £90°L1

182'925 $ 119 $ (g5¢) $ £29'0€2 $ 96¢£'/6C $
pung jo7 bupjigd Xa[aspods 107 bunieg podiy OUBISISSY

pajpusaiun PEIL SIS [eioueUlY4 pue
oL juswdolaasg

SANM4 GIIONISTUNA

G 8|npayos

2102 L€ H389W3020 3AND dV3A SHL HO4d
SMO1d HSVD 40 INJWILVLS ONINIGINOD
ALHOHINY INJWIAOU4II ALNNOD X353 IHL

1eak JO pua ‘syjuswiiseaAu] pue sjuajeainbe yseo ‘ysed

1eak jo BuuuiBaq ‘sjususaaul pue sjusieanbs yses ‘ysed
SJUBWISBAU] USED WLIS}-LI0YS PUR YSEeD Uj 9SBaIoul 18N
saaloe Bupueuy (Ul pasn) Useo JoN

a|qeied spuoq jo Juswhed
:saninoe Buoueuy (Ut pasn)/Aq papiaoid smoy ysed

sapiajoe Busaaul Aq papiaoid yses JaN

sjuawaaoidw Auadold 1o saseyoing
sjqentanal Juelb ul aseasosp/(asealsu))
sasea] Butoueuy
10841p Ul JUBWSaAUL Jou pPajoulsal uo sjuawhed JoN
:sapAnoe Buysanul ug pasn (u) pasn)/Aq papinoid smay ysed

sanianoe Bunesado Ag (Ui pasn)/papiaoid ysed jJoN

sjqeAed punjeju; ut (9sB3108P)/aSEAIOU|
sosuadxa paniooe ul (asealsap)/aseasou|
a|geAladal punjenul uj asealdap/(eseaiouy)
s|qeAIs0a] punpaiu Ut 9sealdap/(asealsul)
Atojuanut ut (aseasoul)/asessna(]
S1aSSe JUSLIND J8YJ0 Ul asealssp/(asearoul)
J8u ‘s|qeAiadal sjunodase Ui (dsealoul)/esessnsyg
:sanyiqey pue sjesse ul sabueyp
uoneziouwe pue uofeioaldag
:sapaoe Bunesado Aq papiaosd yseo Jou o}
sosuadxe (JSpUn)/IBA0 SBNUBASI B[IOUCD3I 0} sjuaulsnipy
19U - Sasuadxd (JSPUN)/IBA0 SBNUBASY
:saipAoe Sugessdo wouy smop yseD

-97 -



GENERAL COMMENTS AND RECOMMENDATIONS




GENERAL COMMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

Unrestricted Funds — Contracts and Agreements Required to be Advertised for N.J.S. 40A:11-4
(as Amended)

N.J.S. 40A:11-4 (as Amended) states, "Every contract or agreement, for the performance of any
work or the furnishing or hiring of any materials or supplies, the cost or the contract price
whereof is to be paid with or out of public funds not included within the terms of Section 3 of this
act, shall be made or awarded only after public act or specifically by any other law. No work,
materials or supplies shall be undertaken, acquired or furnished for a sum exceeding in the
aggregate $26,000.00 and in this case $17,500.00 due to the absence of a Qualified Purchasing
Agent, except by contract or agreement.”

Inasmuch as the system of records did not provide for an accumulation of payments for
categories of materials and supplies or related work or labor, the results of such accumulation
could not reasonably be ascertained. Disbursements were reviewed however, to determine
whether any clear-cut violations existed.

The minutes indicate that bids were requested by public advertising for the following items:

Construction of Runway 10-28 Crack Repair & Sealcoat Project

In addition, the following items were purchased under state contract and/or purchasing co-
operative:

2017 Purchases from State Contracts:
Snow Plow
Security Equipment and Furnitures

Co-Operative:
Trees Removal — Morris County Co-Op

The minutes did indicate that proposals were requested for professional services. The minutes
indicate that resolutions were adopted and advertised authorizing the awarding of contracts or
agreements for “Professional Services” per N.J.S. 40A:11-5.

Our examination of expenditures did not reveal any individual payments, contracts or
agreements in excess of $17,500.00, "for the performance of any work or the furnishing or hiring
of any materials or supplies", other than those where bids had been previously sought by public
advertisement or where a resolution had been previously adopted under the provisions of N.J.S.
40A:11-6.

The Commissioners of the Essex County Improvement Authority have the responsibility of
determining whether any contract or agreement might result in a violation of the statute and
when a question arises, the Authority Counsel's opinion should be sought before a commitment
is made.
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GENERAL COMMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017 (CONTINUED)

Unrestricted Funds — Expenditures and Payroll

In verifying expenditures, computations were tested on claims approved and paid. No attempt
was made in this connection to establish proof of rendition, character or extent of services, nor
quantities, nature, propriety of prices or receipt of materials, these elements being left
necessarily to internal review in connection with approval of claims.

Claims paid during the period under audit were examined on a test basis to determine that they
are submitted on Authority vouchers, itemized, signed by the officials as to approval for
payment, allocation to the proper accounts and charged to proper fiscal period.

An examination was made of the employees’ compensation records for the year ended
December 31, 2017 to determine that salaries were paid in conformity to the amounts
authorized.

Restricted Funds — Statement of Assets and Liabilities (Supplemental Schedule 2)

Our examination revealed that there are eight (8) projects that have neither outstanding debt nor
related bonds or lease receivable which should be considered for closeout.

Budget

The Authority adopted an annual operating budget for the fiscal year ending December 31,
2017. In addition, the annual operating budget for the year ended December 31, 2018 was
adopted by the Authority on November 28, 2017.

The Authority operates with a complete encumbrance system for its budget appropriations.
Debt Service

All debt service obligations of the Authority were paid in accordance with the repayments as
scheduled in the bond agreement with the exception of the Marina Bay Series A and Series B
for principal and interest which has been the subject of potential adjustments proposed by the
bondholder representative in conjunction with the Trustee. (Refer to Notes to Financial
Statements 7). It should be noted that the obligation to pay the debt service on the Bonds is not
that of the Authority.

interfunds
There is one interfund that is greater than one (1) year old that relates to PGLP cash

requirements that is in effect being raised through user fees to reduce on a proportionate basis
the liability with final payment to be not later than 2026.
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GENERAL COMMENTS
DECEMBER 31, 2017 (CONTINUED)

Financial Procedures Review

It is suggested that for all financial processes with each revenue generating department and for
every Authority function related to finance that a review, updating and documentation of all
procedures be done in order to be in compliance with recent accounting and auditing
requirements related to internal control. It is essential to the operation of an entity the size of
the Authority that compliance with the procedures be emphasized and adhered in order to avoid
errors, misunderstandings, assist in periods of employee turnover and present an early warning
system for defalcation.

Prior Year Audit Recommendation

None.

Other Comments

An exit conference at the Authority was held on May 8, 2018.

Acknowledgment

We wish to express our appreciation for the cooperation received from the Essex County
Improvement Authority officials and employees, and for the courtesies extended to us during the
course of the audit.

Filing Audit Report, N.J.S.A. 40A:5A-15

A copy of this report has been filed with the Division of Local Government Services.
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RECOMMENDATIONS
DECEMBER 31, 2017

None.

A corrective action plan for 2017 is not required by the Authority since there were no
recommendations. Should you desire our assistance in developing or implementing any other
matter, please do not hesitate to contact me.

The general comments noted in our audit were not of such magnitude that they precluded us

from issuing an unmodified opinion on the financial statements taken as a whole.

Very truly yours,

Joseph §. Faceone

Joseph J. Faccone
Registered Municipal Accountant #100

For the Firm

SAMUEL KLEIN AND COMPANY
Certified Public Accountants
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